
 

 

 
 

BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

June 03, 2019 

7:00 PM 

 

 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  June 03, 2019 

  Page 2 of 4 

 

 

This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their 

meeting and all items found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may 

also, in their absolute discretion, consider matters not shown on this agenda. 
 

Special accommodations for the disabled who attend public meetings can be made by contacting 

the Clerk to the Board 24 hours in advance at 252-338-6363, Ext. 100. 

 

Please turn Cell Phone ringers off during the meeting. 
 

Agenda 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

BOC - Regular Meeting 

June 03, 2019 

7:00 PM 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

 

 Welcome & Call to Order 

 Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance 

 Pastor Joe Brock - Harmony Baptist Church 

ITEM 1. Public Comments 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of comments 

may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and other issues. 

ITEM 2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement 

ITEM 3. Consideration of Agenda (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 4. Presentations (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Litter Sweep Participant Recognition - Brenda Bowman 

B. NC Complete Count Commission - James Cofield, Jr. 

C. U.S. Census Bureau - Bernadette Richards 

Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors Meeting 

Reconvene Board of Commissioners 

ITEM 5. Public Hearings 

A. Ordinance 2019-03-01 - Rezoning Application for Keeter Barn, LLC 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  June 03, 2019 

  Page 3 of 4 

 

B. Preliminary Plan Phase II Sleepy Hollow Estates 

C. Proposed FY 19-20 Budget 

D. Proposed FY 19-20 Capital Improvement Program 

ITEM 6. New Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Tax Report - Lisa Anderson 

B. South Mills VFD Fire Dept. - Tommy Banks 

C. Resolution 2019-06-01: Salaries & Compensation for Various Boards and Commissions 

D. Resolution 2019-06-02: Chesapeake Regional Healthcare Building Reuse Project 

ITEM 7. Board Appointments (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Library Board 

B. DSS Advisory Board 

ITEM 8. Consent Agenda  

A. BOC Meeting Minutes - May 2, 2019 

B. BOC Meeting Minutes - May 6, 2019 

C. School Budget Amendments 

D. DMV Monthly Report 

E. Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

F. Tax Collection Report 

G. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

H. Resolution 2019-06-03: Strengthening Critical Drainage & Water Quality Infrastructure 

ITEM 9. County Manager's Report 

ITEM 10. Commissioners' Reports 

ITEM 11. Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

A. FY 18-19 YTD Finance Report 

B. Register of Deeds Report 

C. Library Report 

ITEM 12. Other Matters (For discussion and possible action) 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  June 03, 2019 

  Page 4 of 4 

 

ITEM 13. Adjourn 

Reconvene Board of Equalization & Review 

ITEM  Adjourn Board of Equalization & Review 



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 4.A 

Meeting Date:   June 03, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Litter Sweep Participant Recognition - Brenda Bowman 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

Mrs. Brenda Bowman will recognize Litter Sweep participants. 

4.A

Packet Pg. 5



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 4.B 

Meeting Date:   June 03, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   NC Complete Count Commission - James Cofield, Jr. 

 

Attachments: NCCCC 2020-NC-Fact-sheet (PDF) 

JEC NCCCC Power Point Presentation Original Docs_

 (PPTX) 

CamdenCountyNCCCC (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

Mr. Cofield is a member of the NC Complete Count Commission for the 2020 Census.  It is the 

objective of the Commission to elicit as much help as possible so that a high participation rate 

can be achieved in the 2020 census in North Carolina.  He will provide demographic and 

funding information that is specific to Camden County and outline specific strategies of how the 

Camden County Board of Commissioners can be helpful in ensuring that every resident in 

Camden County is counted.   

4.B

Packet Pg. 6



 

 

Census Day is April 1, 2020!   

The Census counts everyone, once, and in the place they usually reside. 

By taking a few minutes to answer your Census form, you will increase our voice in Congress, bring 

tax dollars back to our communities, and invest in better planning and services for your 

neighborhood. 

You can use the internet or your smartphone to complete your 2020 Census questionnaire. 

Your personal Census information is confidential and by law cannot be shared with law 

enforcement, the courts, immigration, or anyone for 72 years.  

Being counted in the Census is safe, quick, and very important to the future of our communities 

and state. 

The Census is a once a decade snapshot of who we are, and you are an important part of that 

picture!  You count in your neighborhood, county, and state … Be Counted in the Census! 

 

The Census is required by the US Constitution to apportion seats in the House of Representatives. 

The US Government spent nearly $590 billion in FY 2015 based on Census data - 

 $1,632 per person in North Carolina. 

Local governments and businesses rely on Census data to evaluate and serve their communities. 

 

4.B.a

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

C
C

C
C

 2
02

0-
N

C
-F

ac
t-

sh
ee

t 
 (

23
99

 :
 N

C
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 C

o
u

n
t 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 -
 J

am
es

 C
o

fi
el

d
, J

r.
)



Census programs are underway now preparing for the 2020 Census, and we have a role to play.  

Local Governments are invited to participate in: 

Boundary Annexation Survey (BAS) 

Annual survey verifying boundaries as of January 1.  Response 

deadline is May 31. 

Local Update of Census Addresses (LUCA) 

Once a decade verification of residential addresses.  Invitation 

letters were mailed to highest elected officials in July 2017 with 

registration encouraged by September 2017.  Training 

workshops will be held in Fall 2017. Materials will be mailed 

starting in February 2018, and participants will have 120 days to 

verify addresses. 

Participants Statistical Areas Program (PSAP) 

One time opportunity for local governments to suggest 

boundaries for small geographies for data publication 

throughout the next decades.   PSAP materials will be available 

starting in December 2018, and the deadline is May 2019. 

Local governments, businesses, community organizations, 

campuses, faith-based groups, and individuals are invited to 

make the 2020 Census a success by forming or joining a local 

Complete Count Committee (CCC).   CCC members encourage 

friends, family members, coworkers, or neighbors to be counted 

in the Census. 

 

Preparing for the Census – We Have Work To Do!  

 

For questions or information about the Census in North Carolina, contact: 

Bob Coats (Bob.Coats@osbm.nc.gov ) 

(919) 807-4781 

Governor’s Census Liaison 

North Carolina State Data Center, Coordinator 

North Carolina Office of State Budget and Management 

 

4.B.a

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

C
C

C
C

 2
02

0-
N

C
-F

ac
t-

sh
ee

t 
 (

23
99

 :
 N

C
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 C

o
u

n
t 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 -
 J

am
es

 C
o

fi
el

d
, J

r.
)

mailto:Bob.Coats@osbm.nc.gov


1

Welcome N.C. Complete Count 
Commission for Census 2020

census.nc.gov

Let’s get social!
Visit @nccensus, tag us – and use 

#MakeNCCount

4.B.b

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

E
C

 N
C

C
C

C
 P

o
w

er
 P

o
in

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 O

ri
g

in
al

 D
o

cs
_ 

 (
23

99
 :

 N
C

 C
o

m
p

le
te

 C
o

u
n

t



2

Executive Order

Mission:  Governor Roy Cooper has signed an Executive 
Order that establishes the North Carolina Complete 
Count Commission, an advisory membership charged 
with increasing awareness and understanding about the 
importance of the 2020 Census and encouraging people 
of North Carolina to participate in the 2020 Census.

4.B.b

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

E
C

 N
C

C
C

C
 P

o
w

er
 P

o
in

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 O

ri
g

in
al

 D
o

cs
_ 

 (
23

99
 :

 N
C

 C
o

m
p

le
te

 C
o

u
n

t



3

Why Does It Matter?

Why does a complete and accurate Census matter?

Ø The federal, state and local governments all use census data to make policy decisions 
related to funding healthcare, education, transportation and much more – which can 
equate to billions of dollars in federal funds for North Carolina.

Ø Businesses big and small use census data as well.
Ø Finally, census data are used as the basis of our democracy: every 10 years political districts 

are redrawn in a process called redistricting and how many seats a state has in the U.S. 
House of Representatives is recalculated in a process called congressional apportionment. 
(After the 2010 Census, Oregon, Nevada, Utah, Arizona, Texas, Florida, South Carolina, 
Georgia, all gained seats; Iowa, Missouri, Illinois, Michigan, Louisiana, Ohio, Pennsylvania, 
New York, New Jersey, and Massachusetts lost seats!)

4.B.b

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

E
C

 N
C

C
C

C
 P

o
w

er
 P

o
in

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 O

ri
g

in
al

 D
o

cs
_ 

 (
23

99
 :

 N
C

 C
o

m
p

le
te

 C
o

u
n

t



• Our Voice (Representation)
• Census is required in the Constitution

• Count every resident, once, and in the right place

• Apportionment and Redistricting

• Our Tax Dollars (Funding)
• $1,623 per person, per year in Federal Funding to NC  based on Census data 

in FY2015

• About $200 per person, per year in state funding based on Census data

• Our Future (Planning)
• Largest survey in the US providing reliable, comparable data

• Vital for business and local government service 

Census Impact

4.B.b

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

E
C

 N
C

C
C

C
 P

o
w

er
 P

o
in

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 O

ri
g

in
al

 D
o

cs
_ 

 (
23

99
 :

 N
C

 C
o

m
p

le
te

 C
o

u
n

t



Local Update of Census Addresses (LUCA)

Once a decade verification of 
residential and group quarters 
addresses by tribal or local 
governments

Connects Census forms with 
households

4.B.b

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

E
C

 N
C

C
C

C
 P

o
w

er
 P

o
in

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 O

ri
g

in
al

 D
o

cs
_ 

 (
23

99
 :

 N
C

 C
o

m
p

le
te

 C
o

u
n

t



Boundary Annexation Survey (BAS)

Annual verification of corporate 
boundaries

Places addresses – and their 
Census counts – in the correct 
area

4.B.b

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

E
C

 N
C

C
C

C
 P

o
w

er
 P

o
in

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 O

ri
g

in
al

 D
o

cs
_ 

 (
23

99
 :

 N
C

 C
o

m
p

le
te

 C
o

u
n

t



Census Partnership and Promotion 
• Census data is the foundation of apportionment in the US House of 

Representatives, drives over $1,600 per person per year in federal 
funding to North Carolina, and informs local planning, economic 
development, and services.

• Preparation – LUCA, BAS, PSAP – is very important

• Preparation without Participation is wasted effort

• Local preparation partnerships – Complete Count Committees
involve trusted local faces in promoting Census participation

Census Partnership and Promotion

4.B.b

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

E
C

 N
C

C
C

C
 P

o
w

er
 P

o
in

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 O

ri
g

in
al

 D
o

cs
_ 

 (
23

99
 :

 N
C

 C
o

m
p

le
te

 C
o

u
n

t



Participation
Risk

Recent 
Migration

Language

Race

Literacy

Preschool 
Age

Poverty

4.B.b

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

E
C

 N
C

C
C

C
 P

o
w

er
 P

o
in

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 O

ri
g

in
al

 D
o

cs
_ 

 (
23

99
 :

 N
C

 C
o

m
p

le
te

 C
o

u
n

t



4.B.b

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

E
C

 N
C

C
C

C
 P

o
w

er
 P

o
in

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 O

ri
g

in
al

 D
o

cs
_ 

 (
23

99
 :

 N
C

 C
o

m
p

le
te

 C
o

u
n

t



10

Fiscal Impacts of the Census (Annual)

• $205 Per Capita
Source: North Carolina Dept. of Transportation, 2017 North Carolina State Street-Aid Allocations to 
Municipalities ; North Carolina Dept. of Revenue, Collections for Month Ending Reports for 2017.

$1.5 Billion in State Funds Distributed to Municipalities & Counties

Estimated amount of funds distributed annually to North Carolina based upon OSBM certified 
population estimates (2 largest state revenue allocations).

$16.3 Billion in Federal Dollars Distributed to North Carolina
Estimated amount of funds distributed to North Carolina based directly or indirectly on 
decennial Census statistics (16 largest federal programs).

• $1,623 per capita
Source: George Washington University, Counting for Dollars 2020

ANNUAL ESTIMATES REQUIRE ACCURATE CENSUS COUNT!

Note: Not all municipalities and counties participate in street-aid allocations or use the per capita formula for 
distributing DOR funds.

4.B.b

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

E
C

 N
C

C
C

C
 P

o
w

er
 P

o
in

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 O

ri
g

in
al

 D
o

cs
_ 

 (
23

99
 :

 N
C

 C
o

m
p

le
te

 C
o

u
n

t



11

North Carolina Population, 1700 - 2017

Note: Early estimates and censuses excluded most American Indians.  Populations in western North Carolina was 
not enumerated in 1790.
Source: 1700-1787 Estimates from Various Sources as Reported in History and Growth of the United States Census, 
56th Congress, 1st Session, Document 194; US Census Bureau, Decennial Censuses (1790-2010); U.S. Census Bureau, 
Population Estimates, 2017 Vintage.

-

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

7,000,000

8,000,000

9,000,000

10,000,000

11,000,000

1
70

0
1

75
4

1
77

5
1

78
7

1
79

0
1

80
0

1
81

0
1

82
0

1
83

0
1

84
0

1
85

0
1

86
0

1
87

0
1

88
0

1
89

0
1

90
0

1
91

0
1

92
0

1
93

0
1

94
0

1
95

0
1

96
0

1
97

0
1

98
0

1
99

0
2

00
0

2
01

0
2

01
7

10.3 Million

2.6 Million

639,000

4.B.b

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

E
C

 N
C

C
C

C
 P

o
w

er
 P

o
in

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 O

ri
g

in
al

 D
o

cs
_ 

 (
23

99
 :

 N
C

 C
o

m
p

le
te

 C
o

u
n

t



12

Source: US Census Bureau, Decennial Censuses; OSBM Population Projections, 2017 Vintage.

5.1
5.9

6.6

8.0

9.5

10.6

11.8
12.6

1970 1980 1990 2000 2010 2020 2030 2037

North Carolina Population, 1970 – 2010 
and Projected Through 2037

Millions of People

April 5, 2018
Office of State Budget & Management

North Carolina Population Change – Historic and Projected

4.B.b

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

E
C

 N
C

C
C

C
 P

o
w

er
 P

o
in

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 O

ri
g

in
al

 D
o

cs
_ 

 (
23

99
 :

 N
C

 C
o

m
p

le
te

 C
o

u
n

t



13

North Carolina Population vs. Other States

Geographic Area

Population Estimate Change, 2010 to 2017

April 1, 2010 July 1, 2017 Number Percent

United States 308,758,105 325,719,178 16,961,073 5.5

California 37,254,518 39,536,653 2,282,135 6.1

Texas 25,146,100 28,304,596 3,158,496 12.6

Florida 18,804,594 20,984,400 2,179,806 11.6

New York 19,378,110 19,849,399 471,289 2.4

Pennsylvania 12,702,857 12,805,537 102,680 0.8

Illinois 12,831,565 12,802,023 -29,542 -0.2

Ohio 11,536,730 11,658,609 121,879 1.1

Georgia 9,688,690 10,429,379 740,689 7.6

North Carolina 9,535,721 10,273,419 737,698 7.7

Michigan 9,884,129 9,962,311 78,182 0.8

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Population Estimates, 2017 Vintage.

9th Largest State at 10.3 Million 
5th Largest Population Gain (737,698 people), April 2010 to July 2017

4.B.b

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

E
C

 N
C

C
C

C
 P

o
w

er
 P

o
in

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 O

ri
g

in
al

 D
o

cs
_ 

 (
23

99
 :

 N
C

 C
o

m
p

le
te

 C
o

u
n

t



14

4.B.b

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

E
C

 N
C

C
C

C
 P

o
w

er
 P

o
in

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 O

ri
g

in
al

 D
o

cs
_ 

 (
23

99
 :

 N
C

 C
o

m
p

le
te

 C
o

u
n

t



Net Migration Influences Growth More than Natural Increase

15
April 5, 2018
Office of State Budget & Management

Components of Population Change by Period, 1950 - 2017

4.B.b

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

E
C

 N
C

C
C

C
 P

o
w

er
 P

o
in

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 O

ri
g

in
al

 D
o

cs
_ 

 (
23

99
 :

 N
C

 C
o

m
p

le
te

 C
o

u
n

t



Net Migration (cont’d)

Net Domestic Migration Larger Than All But Florida and Texas
Net Domestic Migration for the 10 States with the Largest Number of Net Domestic Migrants,
April 2010 to July 2017

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Population Estimates for States, Vintage 2017.

1,025.3
944.0

327.6
278.3 276.5 264.8 249.1

181.3 178.1 163.5

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

Th
o

u
sa

n
d

s

4.B.b

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

E
C

 N
C

C
C

C
 P

o
w

er
 P

o
in

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 O

ri
g

in
al

 D
o

cs
_ 

 (
23

99
 :

 N
C

 C
o

m
p

le
te

 C
o

u
n

t



17

Many North Carolinians Were Born Elsewhere

Percent of the North Carolina Population by Place of Birth

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 1-Year 2016 American Community Survey

4.B.b

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

E
C

 N
C

C
C

C
 P

o
w

er
 P

o
in

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 O

ri
g

in
al

 D
o

cs
_ 

 (
23

99
 :

 N
C

 C
o

m
p

le
te

 C
o

u
n

t



18

Components of Change

Pitt

Wake

Bladen

Duplin

Hyde

Pender

Wilkes

Bertie

Moore

Halifax

Robeson

Nash

Union
Sampson

Onslow

Surry

Columbus

Johnston

Burke

Ashe

Wayne

Randolph

Anson

Guilford

Harnett

Brunswick

Chatham

Jones
Macon

Rowan

Hoke

Stokes

Craven

Warren

Stanly

Gates
Person

Dare

Forsyth

Wilson

Yadkin

Davie

Clay

Lincoln

Iredell

Swain

Martin

Lee

Granville

Lenoir

Buncombe

Franklin

Haywood

Davidson Tyrrell

Jackson

Carteret

Caswell

Caldwell

Cumberland

Beaufort

Orange

Madison

Rutherford

Polk
Cherokee

Gaston

Rockingham

CatawbaMcDowell

Cleveland

Richmond

Northampton

Hertford
Vance

Mecklenburg

Alamance EdgecombeYancey

Avery

Montgomery

Pamlico

Cabarrus
Graham

Durham

Greene

Watauga

Scotland

Henderson

Washington

Transylvania

C
am

den

Mitchell
Alexander

C
urrituck

Alleghany

Chowan

Perquim
ans

Pasquotank

New Hanover
Rate of Net Migration

Out Migration (36)

< 41.7 (32)

41.7 - 74.9 (17)

75 or More (15)

Rate of Net Migration (per 1,000 Population)
for North Carolina Counties, April 1, 2010 - July 1, 2016

Source: North Carolina Office of State Budget & Management;
Demographic & Economic Analysis Branch, Certified Population Estimates, 2016 Vintage.

State Rate of Net Migration = 41.7

4.B.b

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

E
C

 N
C

C
C

C
 P

o
w

er
 P

o
in

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 O

ri
g

in
al

 D
o

cs
_ 

 (
23

99
 :

 N
C

 C
o

m
p

le
te

 C
o

u
n

t



Population by Race and Hispanic Origin, 2016 and 2037

American 
Indian

Alaska Native
2%

Asian
Pacific 

Islander
3%

Black
African-

American
22%

Two or More 
Races

2%

White
71%

American 
Indian
Alaska 
Native

2%

Asian
Pacific 

Islander
4%

Black
African-

American
22%

Two or More 
Races

4%

White
68%

2016 2037

57.7%

28.6%

13.7%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

NH White NH Non-
White

Hispanic

62.8%

27.0%

10.2%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

NH White NH Non-
White

Hispanic

Source: NC OSBM Population Estimates, Vintage 2016 and Population Projections, Vintage 2017.

10.3 Million 12.6 Million

4.B.b

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

E
C

 N
C

C
C

C
 P

o
w

er
 P

o
in

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 O

ri
g

in
al

 D
o

cs
_ 

 (
23

99
 :

 N
C

 C
o

m
p

le
te

 C
o

u
n

t



20

Immigrants in North Carolina

• 767,656 Foreign Born1

• 507,234 Non-Citizens1

• 350,000 Unauthorized Immigrants2

• 8th Largest Unauthorized Population2

• 60% from Mexico, 7% El Salvador, 6% Honduras2

• 3.4% of North Carolina Population2

• 43% of All Immigrants vs. 26% of U.S. Immigrants2

• 5.0% of Labor Force vs. 5.0% U.S. Labor Force2

• 8.7% of NC K-12 Students Have Unauthorized Parent(s)2

• 41,000 (12%) Eligible for DACA (29,260 enrolled)3

Sources: 1U.S. Census Bureau, 2012-2016 American Community Survey; 
2“Overall Number of US Unauthorized Immigrants Hold Steady Since 2009” by Jeffrey S. Pasel and 
D’Vera Cohn, Pew Research Center, September 20, 2016 & 3Institute on Taxation and Economic Policy, 
“State & Local Tax Contributions of Young Undocumented Immigrants” April 25, 20177.3% for US
*

4.B.b

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

E
C

 N
C

C
C

C
 P

o
w

er
 P

o
in

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 O

ri
g

in
al

 D
o

cs
_ 

 (
23

99
 :

 N
C

 C
o

m
p

le
te

 C
o

u
n

t



Total Population 10,228

Persons under 5 years (percent) 4.8

Persons 65 years and over (percent) 15.8

Median household income (in 2016 dollars)
60,714

Persons in poverty (percent) 10.4

High school graduate or higher (age 25+, 

percent) 83.2

Foreign-born persons (percent) 3.1

71
78

Mail-In Response Rate

2000 Response 2010 Response

9,980 10,228 10,505

Total Population

2010 Total 2012-2016 Total 2020 Total

82.6

14.2

0.2

2.0

0.0

0.0

0.9

White alone

Black or African American alone

American Indian and Alaska Native alone

Asian alone

Native Hawaiian and Pacific Islander alone

Some Other Race alone

Two or more races

2012-2016 Race as a Percent of the Total

2.6Hispanic or Latino (of any race)

2012-2016 Hispanic or Latino Origin

95.2

2.6

0.4 1.9

0
1.9

Language Spoken at Home
(Population 5 years and over)

English only Spanish Indo-European

Asian language Other language

The US Census is required by the Constitution.  The once a decade count determines how many representatives North Carolina will have in Congress and where state, county, town, and other 
local districts are drawn.

The Census is the largest and most reliable picture of our communities and is vital to planning for future services like schools, streets and utilities, hospitals and clinics, shopping and more.

Census data brings your tax dollars back to your community.
More than $1,623 per person in federal aid and $205 in state aid are distributed annually in North Carolina based on the census count. CHIP, Medicare and Medicaid, SNAP (Food Stamps), Head 
Start, Foster Care and National School Lunch Program grants, and Highway planning and construction grants (including the NC Powell Bill) rely on census information.

Camden County Counts

North Carolina Complete Count Commission #MakeNCCount census.nc.gov

4.B.c

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
C

o
u

n
ty

N
C

C
C

C
  (

23
99

 :
 N

C
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 C

o
u

n
t 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 -
 J

am
es

 C
o

fi
el

d
, J

r.
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 4.C 

Meeting Date:   June 03, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   U.S. Census Bureau - Bernadette Richards 

 

Attachments: US Census Presentation (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

Bernadette Richards will be making a presentation of behalf of the U.S. Census Bureau. 

4.C

Packet Pg. 30



1

Known for excellent schools and strong community spirit, Camden County is ... 
Where Families Thrive!

4.C.a

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

S
 C

en
su

s 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

24
20

 :
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s 
B

u
re

au
 -

 B
er

n
ad

et
te

 R
ic

h
ar

d
s)

https://camdencountync.gov/


2020 CENSUS 
YOUR COMMUNITIES COUNT! 

Atlanta Regional Office

Managing Census Operations in

AL, FL, GA, LA, MS, NC, SC

Instructors Training Guide

4.C.a

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

S
 C

en
su

s 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

24
20

 :
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s 
B

u
re

au
 -

 B
er

n
ad

et
te

 R
ic

h
ar

d
s)



The goal of Census 2020 is to 
count everyone once, 

only once and in the right 
place. 

EVERYONE COUNTS!

3

4.C.a

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

S
 C

en
su

s 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

24
20

 :
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s 
B

u
re

au
 -

 B
er

n
ad

et
te

 R
ic

h
ar

d
s)



4

4.C.a

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

S
 C

en
su

s 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

24
20

 :
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s 
B

u
re

au
 -

 B
er

n
ad

et
te

 R
ic

h
ar

d
s)



Why We Ask 
You to 

Allocate 
Resources to 

the 2020 
Census

• Political Representation

• Census is constitutionally mandated for re-
apportionment of Congress

• Census results are used for Redistricting at 
national, state, and local levels.

• Money/Economic Impact

• Over $675 Billion/year is distributed to state 
and local governments using Census 
numbers (Over $4 Trillion over the decade).

Impact to Your Community
4.C.a

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

S
 C

en
su

s 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

24
20

 :
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s 
B

u
re

au
 -

 B
er

n
ad

et
te

 R
ic

h
ar

d
s)



6

NC STATE  RESPONSE RATES vs CAMDEN COUNTY RESPONSE RATES 

STATE/COUNTY 2000 2010

NORTH CAROLINA

69% 76%

CAMDEN COUNTY 

71% 78%

2
0
2
0

>82
G
O
A
L 

4.C.a

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

S
 C

en
su

s 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

24
20

 :
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s 
B

u
re

au
 -

 B
er

n
ad

et
te

 R
ic

h
ar

d
s)



2020 Census Design

7

4.C.a

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

S
 C

en
su

s 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

24
20

 :
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s 
B

u
re

au
 -

 B
er

n
ad

et
te

 R
ic

h
ar

d
s)



Privacy and Confidentiality

• Under Title 13, U.S. Code, all Census Bureau employees 
swear a lifetime oath to protect respondent data. It is a 
felony for any Census Bureau employee to disclose any 
confidential census information during or after employment, 
and the penalty for wrongful disclosure is up to 5 years 
imprisonment and/or a fine of $250,000.

• We protect information by taking precautions in how we 
collect, analyze and disseminate information. The Census 
Bureau has strong program to protect information as they 
collect, process and store it in secure IT systems. 

• The Census Bureau encrypts information, limits access, and 
actively monitors systems to make sure information stays 
secure.

8

4.C.a

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

S
 C

en
su

s 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

24
20

 :
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s 
B

u
re

au
 -

 B
er

n
ad

et
te

 R
ic

h
ar

d
s)



It is important 
to note that 
the Census 
Bureau:

never asks for your full Social Security 
number; 

never asks for money or a donation; 

never sends requests on behalf of a political 
party; 

never requests PIN codes, passwords or 
similar access information for credit cards, 
banks or other financial accounts.

9

Privacy and Confidentiality
4.C.a

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

S
 C

en
su

s 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

24
20

 :
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s 
B

u
re

au
 -

 B
er

n
ad

et
te

 R
ic

h
ar

d
s)

https://www.census.gov/2010census/about/interactive-form.php


Demographics:
Age
Sex
Marital
Education
Housing
Health Ins and more

Business and 
Industry Data
Import/Exports
Employment
Government Data 

Data at a variety of 
Geographic Levels:
National, State, County
City/Place 
Tract
Block
Congressional Districts

10

Census Bureau Collects a Wide Variety of Data Surveys 4.C.a

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

S
 C

en
su

s 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

24
20

 :
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s 
B

u
re

au
 -

 B
er

n
ad

et
te

 R
ic

h
ar

d
s)



Census Data Are Used In Many Ways

• Forecasting of future 
transportation needs 

• Determining areas eligible for 
housing assistance and 
rehabilitation loans

• Assisting tribal, federal, state 
and local governments in 
planning, and implementing 
programs and services in:

• Education

• Healthcare

• Transportation

• Social Services

• Emergency response

11

4.C.a

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

S
 C

en
su

s 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

24
20

 :
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s 
B

u
re

au
 -

 B
er

n
ad

et
te

 R
ic

h
ar

d
s)



2020 Census New Initiatives

• Allowing people to respond anytime, 
anywhere, via phone or internet. Tests 
have shown internet self-response is the most 
cost effective and accurate way. Those that 
request a form can complete the Census using 
the form.  

• The Census Bureau is eliminating paper and 
incorporating the use of handheld data 
collection devices.

12

The goal of the 2020 Census is to count 
everyone once, 

only once and in the right place. 

4.C.a

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

S
 C

en
su

s 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

24
20

 :
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s 
B

u
re

au
 -

 B
er

n
ad

et
te

 R
ic

h
ar

d
s)



Self Response

13

• The ISR operation was created in response to lessons learned from the 2010 Census, studies, and reviews, where it was recommended that in 
order to optimize self-response, the Census Bureau needed to determine the optimal contact strategies for eliciting responses to the 2020 
Census and to develop an internet application for self-response that appeals to as many people as possible. 

• Maximizing online responses reduces the need for more expensive paper data capture and in-person follow-up.

• Self-response will begin March 12, 2020 and it normally goes a couple days past the end of NRFU (July 2020). 

4.C.a

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

S
 C

en
su

s 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

24
20

 :
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s 
B

u
re

au
 -

 B
er

n
ad

et
te

 R
ic

h
ar

d
s)



Target Populations

• Children 5yrs and under

• Veterans

• People with disabilities

• Homeless

• People living in rural America

• Low income and underserved

• Senior citizens

• Migrant farm workers

• Foreign Born - Immigrants

• Persons with limited English proficiency

• Renters

14

4.C.a

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

S
 C

en
su

s 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

24
20

 :
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s 
B

u
re

au
 -

 B
er

n
ad

et
te

 R
ic

h
ar

d
s)



• Ultimately, the success of the 2020 Census 
depends on everyone’s participation. One way to 
ensure success is by forming a Complete Count 
Committee.

• State and local governments, businesses and 
community leaders form Complete Count 
Committees to encourage participation in their 
community. They develop an outreach plan 
tailored to the unique characteristics of their 
community. Then they work together to 
implement the plan.

• Their focus is to encourage individuals in their 
community to self respond online, on the phone 
or by mail (if they received a questionnaire by 
mail)

15

Overview of Complete Count Committees (CCCs) 4.C.a

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

S
 C

en
su

s 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

24
20

 :
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s 
B

u
re

au
 -

 B
er

n
ad

et
te

 R
ic

h
ar

d
s)



Local Government CCC’s

Local government CCC’s  should include 
members with experience in the 
following areas:

• Government

• Education

• Media

• Minority Organizations

• Community organizations

• Workforce developments

• Faith-based institutions

• Businesses

17

4.C.a

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

S
 C

en
su

s 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

24
20

 :
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s 
B

u
re

au
 -

 B
er

n
ad

et
te

 R
ic

h
ar

d
s)



Community-based CCC’s

The Census Bureau encourages community 
leaders in hard-to-count areas to form CCC’s 
and include trusted voices from the 
community.

Hard-to-count areas may, for example, have:
•   Children 5yrs old and under
• Hidden or overcrowded housing
•   Populations that speak little or no 
English
•   Off-campus apartments 
•   New immigrant populations
•   High poverty areas
•   People displaced by natural disasters 
such as floods, fires, and hurricanes

18

4.C.a

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

S
 C

en
su

s 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

24
20

 :
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s 
B

u
re

au
 -

 B
er

n
ad

et
te

 R
ic

h
ar

d
s)



Prepare for 2020 Census, Now!

• Host or join a Complete Count Committee and partner with 
other trusted voices and influential leaders in your area 
who are committed to increasing census participation. 
Allocate funding for this public education and outreach 
campaign.

• Raise awareness by including census information in 
speeches, newsletters, social media posts, podcasts, email 
blast, utility bills, bulletin boards, signs, bill boards, 
mailings, and add census links on web sites.

• Issue a proclamation announcing your CCC signaling the 
start of the public education and outreach campaign.

• U. S. Census Bureau will have a national education. 
marketing and advertising campaign.

• Help recruit census workers when jobs become available.

4.C.a

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

S
 C

en
su

s 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

24
20

 :
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s 
B

u
re

au
 -

 B
er

n
ad

et
te

 R
ic

h
ar

d
s)



How the Census Bureau Will Support 
You?

• We will provide staff from our regional offices to work directly 
with each Complete Count Committee. 

• We will provide information, assist you in forming committees 
and subcommittees, and participate in local events and 
activities.

• We will provide a guide for 2020 Census Complete Count 
Committees. In the meantime, you can refer to a Complete 
Count Committee guide and other information available 
online from the 2010 Census for historical reference. Keep a 
big change in mind though: we’ll primarily ask people to 
respond to the 2020 Census online (not by mail).

• As the 2020 Census gets closer, the Census Bureau will also 
launch a robust communications campaign. We’ll use 
advertisements, conduct outreach. You can leverage our 
efforts in your own community through your Complete Count 
Committee. 

20

4.C.a

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

S
 C

en
su

s 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

24
20

 :
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s 
B

u
re

au
 -

 B
er

n
ad

et
te

 R
ic

h
ar

d
s)

https://www.census.gov/2010census/partners/pdf/cccGuide.pdf
https://www.census.gov/2010census/partners/national-complete-count-committee/


Explore the Response 
Outreach Area Mapper Web 
Application
https://www.census.gov/roam

• The U.S. Census Bureau has released the 
Response Outreach Area Mapper 
(ROAM) web application. 

• An interactive map to identify areas that 
typically have low response rates for 
censuses and surveys.

• Community planners and local officials 
can use the ROAM to plan, focus and 
allocate resources for the 2020 Census. 

• Provides tract-level data. 

4.C.a

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

S
 C

en
su

s 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

24
20

 :
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s 
B

u
re

au
 -

 B
er

n
ad

et
te

 R
ic

h
ar

d
s)

http://www.census.gov/roam


22

4.C.a

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

S
 C

en
su

s 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

24
20

 :
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s 
B

u
re

au
 -

 B
er

n
ad

et
te

 R
ic

h
ar

d
s)



23

WHO 

DO 

WE 

NEED?

4.C.a

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

S
 C

en
su

s 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

24
20

 :
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s 
B

u
re

au
 -

 B
er

n
ad

et
te

 R
ic

h
ar

d
s)



24

4.C.a

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

S
 C

en
su

s 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

24
20

 :
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s 
B

u
re

au
 -

 B
er

n
ad

et
te

 R
ic

h
ar

d
s)



Contact Information

Atlanta Partnership Staff – Field Division – North Carolina
atlanta.rcc.partnership@census.gov

Atlanta Geography 470-889-6550  atlanta.geography@census.gov

Bernadette L Richards, Partnership Specialist – 678.938.9159 
bernadette.l.richards@2020census.gov

25

4.C.a

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

S
 C

en
su

s 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

24
20

 :
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s 
B

u
re

au
 -

 B
er

n
ad

et
te

 R
ic

h
ar

d
s)

mailto:atlanta.rcc.partnership@census.gov
mailto:atlanta.geography@census.gov
mailto:Carletta.o.singleton@2020census.gov


 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Public Hearings 

 

Item Number: 5.A 

Meeting Date:   June 03, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Dan Porter, Planning Director 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Ordinance 2019-03-01 - Rezoning Application for Keeter 

Barn, LLC 

 

Attachments: Agenda Summary Sheet Ordinance 2019-03-01 Keeter 

Barn (DOC) 

Staff Report Findings (PDF) 

Principal Use Table - HC vs VR (DOCX) 

2019-03-01 - Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning 

Map - Keeter Barn

 (DOC) 

 

See attached. 

5.A

Packet Pg. 55



            
      

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Item Number:  

     

Meeting Date:   June 3, 2019 

Attachments:   Ordinance/Findings/Planning Board  

   Recommendation  

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 
 

ITEM TITLE:  Public hearing - Ordinance 2019-03-01; 
Rezoning Application (UDO 2019-03-04) 
for Keeter Barn, LLC 

 
SUMMARY: 
 

 Keeter Barn, LLC (Managers Chad Williams and Alex Underhill) met with planning staff on rezoning of 

the property located at the intersection of U.S. 17 and Keeter Barn Road to a zoning classification that 

would make the property more marketable as in the requested zoning classification of Village Residential 

vice the existing zoning classification of Highway Residential.   

 

Neighborhood meeting was held March 1, 2019 at the South Mills Fire Station (comments included in 

attached staff report). 

 

Planning Board met on March 20, 2019 and discussed with applicant and staff concerning Future Interstate 

87 and its possible affects to the property, the South Mills Fire Station landing pad concerning the safety 

zone for approaching helicopter’s with the possible location of structures (commercial and residential) that 

could affect the flight path.   Planning Staff stated that both issues could be concerns with the allowed uses 

in the existing zoning of Highway Commercial as well as the proposed zoning request of Village 

Residential (VR) and could be further discussed when a proposed site plan is submitted for review.  After 

discussion, Planning Board made the following motions:  

 

(1) Consistency Statement:    

 

The existing zoning and requested zoning are inconsistent with both the CAMA and 

Comprehensive plans as both plans identify property as low density residential.   At the time both 

plans were adopted sewer availability was either nonexistent or the use of was focused within the 

villages where available.    

 

Excerpt from Comprehensive Plan – Vision Statement 

 

“New development will be focused within targeted core areas to breathe new life into established 

county villages and to efficiently use existing and planned infrastructure and public resources. 

New housing choices will be made available to serve families, young professionals, and retirees. 

Rural areas will maintain prominence in the county, and will continue to serve agricultural and 

forestry production and low density residential development.” 

Also, the requested zoning is supported by several action strategies of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

(2) Recommendation:  Motion was made to recommend approval Rezoning Application (UDO 

2019-03-04) , rezoning property from Highway Commercial (HC) to Village Residential (VR).  

Motion passed on a 5-0 vote. 

MOTION MADE BY: 

T. White         ____ 

C. Riggs        ____ 

G. Meiggs      ____ 

R. Krainiak     ____ 

R. Munro        ____ 

NO MOTION   ____ 
 
VOTE: 

T. White         ____ 

C. Riggs         ____ 

G. Meiggs      ____ 

R. Krainiak     ____ 
R. Munro        ____ 
ABSENT         ____ 
RECUSED      ____ 
 

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

S
h

ee
t 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
K

ee
te

r 
B

ar
n

  (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
,



 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1.  Hold public hearing. 

2. Amend Agenda for consideration. 

 

If being considered for approval, request consider the following 2 motions: 

 
Consistency Statement motion:    

 

The existing zoning and requested zoning are inconsistent with both the CAMA and 

Comprehensive plans as both plans identify property as low density residential.   At the time both 

plans were adopted sewer availability was either nonexistent or the use of was focused within the 

villages where available.   However, the requested change from HC to a more residential zoning is 

somewhat consistent with the Comprehensive Plan’s recommendation for a residential use and it’s 

vision statement regarding existing infrastructure. 

 

Excerpt from Comprehensive Plan – Vision Statement 

 

“New development will be focused within targeted core areas to breathe new life into established 

county villages and to efficiently use existing and planned infrastructure and public resources. 

New housing choices will be made available to serve families, young professionals, and retirees. 

Rural areas will maintain prominence in the county, and will continue to serve agricultural and 

forestry production and low density residential development.” 

Also, the requested zoning is supported by several action strategies of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Motion:  To approve Ordinance 2019-03-01/Rezoning Application (UDO 2019-03-04) , rezoning 

property from Highway Commercial (HC) to Village Residential (VR).    

 

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

S
h

ee
t 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
K

ee
te

r 
B

ar
n

  (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
,



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
, L

L
C

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
, L

L
C

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
, L

L
C

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
, L

L
C

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
, L

L
C

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
, L

L
C

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
, L

L
C

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
, L

L
C

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
, L

L
C

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
, L

L
C

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
, L

L
C

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
, L

L
C

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
, L

L
C

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
, L

L
C

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
, L

L
C

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
, L

L
C

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
, L

L
C

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
, L

L
C

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
, L

L
C

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
, L

L
C

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
, L

L
C

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
, L

L
C

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
, L

L
C

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
, L

L
C

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
, L

L
C

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
24

11
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
, L

L
C

)



CAMDEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
PRINCIPAL USE TABLE, DISTRICT COMPARISON 

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL VS VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL 
 

USE CLASS MAIN CATEGORY CATEGORY HC VR 
 

Page 1 of 3 

Agricultural AGRICULTURE/HORTICULTURE All Agriculture/ Horticulture Uses P  

Agricultural ANIMAL HUSBANDRY Animal Husbandry Uses (excluding 
stockyards and slaughterhouses) 

  

Agricultural ANIMAL HUSBANDRY Stockyard/Slaughterhouse   

Agricultural AGRICULTURAL SUPPORT Agricultural Research Facility P  

Agricultural AGRICULTURAL SUPPORT Agri-Education/ Agri-Entertainment S  

Agricultural AGRICULTURAL SUPPORT Distribution Hub for Agriculture Products P  

Agricultural AGRICULTURAL SUPPORT Equestrian Facility S  

Agricultural AGRICULTURAL SUPPORT Farm Machinery Sales, Rental, or Service S  

Agricultural AGRICULTURAL SUPPORT Farmers Market P  

Agricultural AGRICULTURAL SUPPORT Roadside Market P  

Residential HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES Bungalow Court  P 

Residential HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES Duplex  P 

Residential HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES Live/Work Dwelling  P 

Residential HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES Manufactured Home   

Residential HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES Manufactured Home or Mobile Home 
Park 

  

Residential HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES Mobile Home   

Residential HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES Multi-Family S  

Residential HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES Pocket Neighborhood  P 

Residential HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES Quadraplex P  

Residential HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES Single-Family Attached S S 

Residential HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES Single-Family Detached  P 

Residential HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES Triplex P  

Residential HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES Upper Story Residential P  

Residential GROUP LIVING Dormitory S  

Residential GROUP LIVING Family Care Home  P 

Residential GROUP LIVING Group Home S  

Residential GROUP LIVING Rooming House S  

Institutional COMMUNITY SERVICES Community Center P S 

Institutional COMMUNITY SERVICES Cultural Facility S S 

Institutional COMMUNITY SERVICES Library P  

Institutional COMMUNITY SERVICES Museum P  

Institutional COMMUNITY SERVICES Senior Center P P 

Institutional COMMUNITY SERVICES Youth Club Facility P S 

Institutional DAY CARE Adult Day Care Center P S 

Institutional DAY CARE Child Care Center P P 

Institutional EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES Major S  

Institutional EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES Moderate P S 

Institutional EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES Minor P P 

Institutional GOVERNMENT FACILITIES Government Office P  

Institutional GOVERNMENT FACILITIES Government Maintenance, Storage, or 
Distribution Facility 

P  

Institutional HEALTH CARE FACILITIES Drug or Alcohol Treatment Facility S  

Institutional HEALTH CARE FACILITIES Hospital S  

Institutional HEALTH CARE FACILITIES Medical Treatment Facility P S 

Institutional INSTITUTIONS Assisted Living Facility S S 

Institutional INSTITUTIONS Club or Lodge P S 

5.A.c

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ri
n

ci
p

al
 U

se
 T

ab
le

 -
 H

C
 v

s 
V

R
  (

24
11

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1 

- 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
K

ee
te

r 
B

ar
n

, L
L

C
)



CAMDEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
PRINCIPAL USE TABLE, DISTRICT COMPARISON 

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL VS VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL 
 

USE CLASS MAIN CATEGORY CATEGORY HC VR 
 

Page 2 of 3 

Institutional INSTITUTIONS Halfway House S  

Institutional INSTITUTIONS Nursing Home S  

Institutional INSTITUTIONS Psychiatric Treatment Facility S  

Institutional INSTITUTIONS Religious Institution P S 

Institutional PARKS AND OPEN AREAS Cemetery S S 

Institutional PARKS AND OPEN AREAS Community Garden  P 

Institutional PARKS AND OPEN AREAS Park, Public or Private P P 

Institutional PUBLIC SAFETY Police, Fire, or EMS Facility P S 

Institutional PUBLIC SAFETY Correctional Facility   

Institutional PUBLIC SAFETY Security Training Facility   

Institutional TRANSPORTATION Airport   

Institutional TRANSPORTATION Helicopter Landing Facility S  

Institutional TRANSPORTATION Passenger Terminal, Surface 
Transportation 

S  

Institutional UTILITIES Utility, Major P S 

Institutional UTILITIES Utility, Minor P P 

Commercial ADULT AND SEXUALLY-ORIENTED 
BUSINESSES 

All Adult and Sexually-Oriented 
Businesses 

  

Commercial ANIMAL CARE Major P  

Commercial ANIMAL CARE Minor P  

Commercial EATING ESTABLISHMENTS Restaurant, Major P  

Commercial EATING ESTABLISHMENTS Restaurant, Minor P  

Commercial EATING ESTABLISHMENTS Bar, Nightclub, or Dance Hall S  

Commercial OFFICES Major S  

Commercial OFFICES Minor P  

Commercial PARKING, COMMERCIAL All P  

Commercial PERSONAL SERVICES Major P  

Commercial PERSONAL SERVICES Minor P  

Commercial RECREATION/ENTERTAINMENT, INDOOR Major P  

Commercial RECREATION/ENTERTAINMENT, INDOOR Minor P  

Commercial RECREATION/ENTERTAINMENT, 
OUTDOOR 

Major S  

Commercial RECREATION/ENTERTAINMENT, 
OUTDOOR 

Minor P  

Commercial RECREATION/ENTERTAINMENT, 
OUTDOOR 

Firing Range   

Commercial RECREATION/ENTERTAINMENT, 
OUTDOOR 

Water-Related Uses   

Commercial RETAIL SALES Flea Market S  

Commercial RETAIL SALES Grocery Store P  

Commercial RETAIL SALES Major P  

Commercial RETAIL SALES Minor P  

Commercial STORAGE, COMMERCIAL Major P  

Commercial STORAGE, COMMERCIAL Minor P  

Commercial TELECOMMUNICATIONS Antenna Collocation (on a Building) P P 

Commercial TELECOMMUNICATIONS Antenna Collocation (on a Tower) P P 

Commercial TELECOMMUNICATIONS Small Wireless Facility P P 

5.A.c

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ri
n

ci
p

al
 U

se
 T

ab
le

 -
 H

C
 v

s 
V

R
  (

24
11

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1 

- 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
K

ee
te

r 
B

ar
n

, L
L

C
)



CAMDEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
PRINCIPAL USE TABLE, DISTRICT COMPARISON 

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL VS VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL 
 

USE CLASS MAIN CATEGORY CATEGORY HC VR 
 

Page 3 of 3 

Commercial TELECOMMUNICATIONS Telecommunications Tower, 
Freestanding 

S  

Commercial TELECOMMUNICATIONS Telecommunications Tower, Stealth P P 

Commercial VEHICLE ESTABLISHMENT Major P  

Commercial VEHICLE ESTABLISHMENT Minor P  

Commercial VISITOR ACCOMMODATIONS Bed and Breakfast  S 

Commercial VISITOR ACCOMMODATIONS Campground S  

Commercial VISITOR ACCOMMODATIONS Hotel or Motel S  

Industrial EXTRACTIVE INDUSTRY All   

Industrial INDUSTRIAL SERVICES Contractor Service P  

Industrial INDUSTRIAL SERVICES Crabshedding   

Industrial INDUSTRIAL SERVICES Fuel Oil or Bottled Gas Distributor   

Industrial INDUSTRIAL SERVICES General Industrial Service and Repair S  

Industrial INDUSTRIAL SERVICES Heavy Equipment Sales, Rental, or 
Service 

P  

Industrial INDUSTRIAL SERVICES Research and Development P  

Industrial MANUFACTURING AND PRODUCTION Manufacturing, Heavy   

Industrial MANUFACTURING AND PRODUCTION Manufacturing, Light P  

Industrial POWER GENERATION Solar Array S S 

Industrial POWER GENERATION Wind Energy Conversion Facility S  

Industrial WAREHOUSE AND FREIGHT MOVEMENT All P  

Industrial WASTE-RELATED SERVICES Incinerator   

Industrial WASTE-RELATED SERVICES Land Application of Sludge/Septage   

Industrial WASTE-RELATED SERVICES Landfill   

Industrial WASTE-RELATED SERVICES Public Convenience Center or Transfer 
Station 

P  

Industrial WASTE-RELATED SERVICES Recycling Center P  

Industrial WASTE-RELATED SERVICES Salvage or Junkyard   

Industrial WASTE-RELATED SERVICES Waste Composting Facility   

Industrial WHOLESALE SALES Major P  

Industrial WHOLESALE SALES Minor P  
 

NOTES: 
 
"P" = Permitted 
"S" = Permitted with Special Use Permit 
Blank = Prohibited 
 
For more information regarding categories and their descriptions, please refer to UDO Table 4.3.10, Principal Use 
Table. 

 

5.A.c

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ri
n

ci
p

al
 U

se
 T

ab
le

 -
 H

C
 v

s 
V

R
  (

24
11

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1 

- 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
K

ee
te

r 
B

ar
n

, L
L

C
)



 

Ordinance No. 2019-03-01 

 

An Ordinance 

Amending the Camden County  

Zoning Map 

Camden County, North Carolina 

 

 

 

Article I: Purpose 

 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend the Zoning Map of Camden County, North 

Carolina, which was originally adopted by the County Commissioners on December 20, 

1993, and subsequently amended. 

  

Article II. Amendment to Zoning Map  
 

The Official Zoning Map of Camden County, North Carolina, which was adopted on 

December 20, 1993, and subsequently amended, is hereby amended as follows: 

 

The property currently shown in the Camden County Tax Assessor’s Office as 

PIN 01-7080-00-30-7405 is hereby re-zoned from Highway Commercial (HC) to  

Village Residential (VR).   

 

Article III. Penalty 

 

1. Violations of the provision of this Ordinance or failure to comply with any of its  

Requirements, including violations of any conditions and safeguards established 

in connection with grants of variances or Special Use or Conditional Use Permits, 

shall constitute a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of up to five-hundred ($500) 

dollars or a maximum thirty (30) days imprisonment as provided in G. S. 14-4. 

 

2. Any act constituting a violation of the provisions of this Ordinance or a failure to  

comply with any of its requirements, including violations of any conditions and 

safeguards established in connection with the grants of variances or Special Use 

or Conditional Use Permits, shall also subject the offender to a civil penalty of 

one-hundred ($100) dollars for each day the violation continues.  If the offender 

fails to pay the penalty within ten (10) days after being cited for a violation, the 

penalty may be recovered by the county in a civil action in the nature of debt.  A 

civil penalty may not be appealed to the Board of Adjustment if the offender was 

sent a final notice of violation in accordance with Article 151.568 and did not take 

an appeal to the Board of Adjustment within the prescribed time. 

 

3. This Ordinance may also be enforced by any appropriate equitable action. 

 

5.A.d

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

m
en

d
in

g
 t

h
e 

O
ff

ic
ia

l Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 -

 K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
  (

24
11

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1 

- 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r



 

4. Each day that any violation continues after notification by the administrator that  

such violation exists shall be considered a separate offense for purposes of the 

penalties and remedies specified in this section. 

 

5. Any one, all or any combination of the foregoing penalties and remedies may be  

used to enforce this Ordinance. 

            

 

Article IV. Severability 
 

If any language in this Ordinance is found to be invalid by a court of competent 

jurisdiction or other entity having such legal authority, then only the specific language 

held to be invalid shall be affected and all other language shall be in full force and effect. 

 

 

Article V. Effective Date 

 

This Ordinance is effective upon adoption. 

 

Adopted by the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden this       day of        ,                                

2019. 

 

 

      County of Camden 

    

      _____________________________ 

      Tom White, Chairman 

      Camden County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

Karen Davis 

Clerk to the Board       (SEAL) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.A.d

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

m
en

d
in

g
 t

h
e 

O
ff

ic
ia

l Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 -

 K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
  (

24
11

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1 

- 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Public Hearings 

 

Item Number: 5.B 

Meeting Date:   June 03, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Dan Porter, Planning Director 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Preliminary Plan Phase II Sleepy Hollow Estates 

 

Attachments: Agenda Summary Sheet Sleepy Hollow Estates

 (DOC) 

Staff Report Sleepy Hollow Estates (PDF) 

revised Sleepy Hollow PHASE 2 Prelim 20190423

 (PDF) 

Supporting documents Sleepy Hollow (PDF) 

Planning Board Minutes 03172019 (PDF) 

Draft PB Minutes 04172019 (PDF) 

 

See attached. 

5.B

Packet Pg. 89



            
      

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

          
 
 
 

Item Number:  

     

Meeting Date:   June 3, 2019 

Attachments:   Preliminary Plan/Staff Findings/TRC inputs  

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

 

ITEM TITLE:  Public Hearing; Preliminary Plan  
                       Phase II Sleepy Hollow Estates Major 

Subdivision – (UDO 2019-02-18) 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
Planning Board met on March 20, 2019 and carried application over to their April 

17, 2019 Planning Board meeting based on property line disputes.   The following 

issues were brought up by an adjacent property owner: 

 

Property lines – See County Attorney letter dated March 29, 2019 (attached). 

 

Farmland Compatibility Standards (Article 151.5.5 of the UDO) and NC General 

Statute 153A-340 (attached).  

 

Length of Cul-de-sacs – Article 151.6.2.3K (UDO) 

 

External Street Connectivity – Article 151.6.2.3.I.2a (UDO) 

 

Included in findings are approved Board Minutes of March 20, 2019 and excerpt of 

draft minutes from April 17, 2019 concerning above issues.   

 

After discussion with Planning Staff and adjacent property owner on above issues, 

Planning Board recommended approval of Phase II Sleepy Hollow Estates major 

subdivision on a 5-0 vote. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1) Hold public hearing. 

2) Amend agenda for consideration.  

  

 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

T. White         ____ 

C. Riggs         ____ 

G. Meiggs      ____ 

R. Krainiak    ____ 

R. Munro       ____ 

NO MOTION   ____ 
 
VOTE: 

T. White         ____ 

C. Riggs         ____ 

G. Meiggs      ____ 

R. Krainiak    ____ 
R. Munro       ____ 
ABSENT        ____ 
RECUSED     ____ 
 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

S
h

ee
t 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



5.B.b

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



5.B.b

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



5.B.b

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



5.B.b

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



5.B.b

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



5.B.b

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



5.B.b

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



5.B.b

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



5.B.b

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



N

A

D

 

8

3

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

INV 4.62

INV 3.11

INV 1.65

INV 3.08

INV IN 0.72

INV OUT 0.35

INV 1.80

INV 1.61

INV 2.16

INV 4.15

INV 4.41

INV 3.00

INV 1.03

INV 1.04

EX. 15" PP

INV IN 1.42

INV OUT 1.73

INV 2.80

INV 2.88

INV 3.34

INV 3.56

INV 2.71

INV 1.27

INV 2.34

INV 3.09

INV 3.00

INV 4.29

INV 4.45

INV 3.85

INV 4.44

INV 3.56

INV 4.68

INV 4.15

S
L

E
E

P
Y

 
H

O
L

L
O

W
 
R

O
A

D
 
-
 
S

R
 
1
2
0
2
 
(
6
0
'
 
R

/
W

)

20' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

P.C. 8, SLD. 138

2

0

'
 
D

R

A

I
N

A

G

E

 
E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

P

.
C

.
 
8

,
 
S

L

D

.
 
1

3

8

EX. SEDIMENT

BASIN

NOW OR FORMERLY

TRUSTEES OF NEW SAWYERS

CREEK BAPTIST CHURCH

D.B. 181, PG. 400

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

PERCY I. & WANDA J.

DANIELS

D.B. 114, PG. 344

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

PERCY I. & WANDA J.

DANIELS

D.B. 114, PG. 344

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

MILES E. GREGORY

D.B. 64, PG. 238

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

REGINALD TILLETT

D.B. 125, PG. 121

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

LIVIA MARIE BAKER

D.B. 278, PG. 701

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

GARY K. ELLENBURG

D.B. 261, PG. 825

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

HORACE MELVILLE CUTHRELL

D.B. 212, PG. 77

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY

TRUSTEES OF NEW SAWYERS

CREEK BAPTIST CHURCH

D.B. 366, PG. 719

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

JOSEPH K. & WANDA S. FORBES

D.B. 352, PG. 823

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY

JOSEPH K. & WANDA S. FORBES

D.B. 352, PG. 823

ZONING: RR

4

3

2

1

SLEEPY HOLLOW ESTATES

P.C. 8, SLD. 138

ZONING: NR

SLEEPY HOLLOW ESTATES

P.C. 8, SLD. 138

ZONING: NR

SLEEPY HOLLOW ESTATES

P.C. 8, SLD. 138

ZONING: NR

SLEEPY HOLLOW ESTATES

P.C. 8, SLD. 138

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

SARAH FORBES HAMILTON &

BRAD ALLAN HAMILTON

D.B. 299, PG. 8

ZONING: RR

TBM

TOP NUT FIRE

HYDRANT

ELEV=6.07

WWWWWW

W

W

W

W

W

5

11

49,333 SF

1.13 AC

40,000 SF

0.92 AC

13

8

12

50,368 SF

1.15 AC

40,200 SF

0.92 AC

7

14

41,223 SF

0.94 AC

40,200 SF

0.92 AC

50,367 SF

1.15 AC
6

9

10

51,388 SF

1.17 AC

50,367 SF

1.15 AC

48,790 SF

1.12 AC

1

2

2

.
5

9

'

1

2

5

.
6

2

'

1

4

.
3

3

'

7

.
6

1

'

5

0

.
1

0

'

5

0

' 
A

G

R

I
C

U

L

T

U

R

E

 
B

U

F

F

E

R

4

0

'
 
B

U

F

F

E

R

5
0
'
 
A

G

R

I
C

U

L
T

U

R

E
 
B

U

F
F

E
R

5

0

' 
F

R

O

N

T

 
S

E

T

B

A

C

K

 
(
T

Y

P

.
)

1
0
'
 
S

I
D

E
 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

 
(
T

Y
P

.
)

1

0

' 
R

E

A

R

 
S

E

T

B

A

C

K

 
(
T

Y

P

.
)

1

0

'
 
S

I
D

E

 
S

E

T

B

A

C

K

 
(
T

Y

P

.
)

NOW OR FORMERLY

TRUSTEES OF NEW SAWYERS

CREEK BAPTIST CHURCH

D.B. 181, PG. 400

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

PERCY I. & WANDA J.

DANIELS

D.B. 114, PG. 344

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

PERCY I. & WANDA J.

DANIELS

D.B. 114, PG. 344

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

MILES E. GREGORY

D.B. 64, PG. 238

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

REGINALD TILLETT

D.B. 125, PG. 121

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

LIVIA MARIE BAKER

D.B. 278, PG. 701

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

GARY K. ELLENBURG

D.B. 261, PG. 825

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

HORACE MELVILLE CUTHRELL

D.B. 212, PG. 77

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY

TRUSTEES OF NEW SAWYERS

CREEK BAPTIST CHURCH

D.B. 366, PG. 719

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

JOSEPH K. & WANDA S. FORBES

D.B. 352, PG. 823

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY

JOSEPH K. & WANDA S. FORBES

D.B. 352, PG. 823

ZONING: RR

4

3

2

1

SLEEPY HOLLOW ESTATES

P.C. 8, SLD. 138

ZONING: NR

SLEEPY HOLLOW ESTATES

P.C. 8, SLD. 138

ZONING: NR

SLEEPY HOLLOW ESTATES

P.C. 8, SLD. 138

ZONING: NR

SLEEPY HOLLOW ESTATES

P.C. 8, SLD. 138

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

SARAH FORBES HAMILTON &

BRAD ALLAN HAMILTON

D.B. 299, PG. 8

ZONING: RR

1

3

5

.
1

4

'

C

1

S25°53'45"W     541.80'

S

3

5

°
1

7

'2

8

"
W

 
 
 
 
 
2

6

2

.
5

4

'

C

3

C

4

C

5

S

3

5

°
1

7

'2

8

"
W

 
 
 
 
 
1

9

2

.
8

5

'

N

3

5

°
1

7

'2

8

"
E

 
 
 
 
 
1

9

6

.
0

2

'

C

6

C

7

C

8

N

3

5

°
1

7

'2

8

"
E

 
 
 
 
 
2

6

2

.
5

4

'

S

5

4

°
4

2

'
3

2

"
E

 
 
 
 
 
3

2

0

.
0

1

'

S

3

5

°
1

7

'2

8

"
W

 
 
 
 
 
4

9

9

.
8

6

'

S

5

4

°
4

2

'
3

2

"
E

 
 
 
 
 
3

2

0

.
0

0

'

S

5

4

°
4

2

'
3

2

"
E

 
 
 
 
 
3

2

0

.
0

0

'

S

5

4

°
4

2

'
3

2

"
E

 
 
 
 
 
3

2

0

.
0

0

'

N

5

4

°
4

2

'
3

2

"
W

 
 
 
 
 
3

6

6

.
9

5

'

N

5

4

°
4

2

'
3

2

"
W

 
 
 
 
 
3

5

1

.
0

5

'

N

5

4

°
4

2

'
3

2

"
W

 
 
 
 
 
3

3

4

.
4

0

'

N
6
3
°
1
1
'
0
7
"
W

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
.
8
2
'

N
6

4
°
0

6
'
1

5
"
W

 
 
 
 
 
3

8
5

.
0

1
'

1

2

2

.
5

9

'

1

2

5

.
6

2

'

14.33'

N
5
8
°
2
0
'
0
5
"
W

 
 
 
 
 
7
5
5
.
3
8
'

133.50'140.37'

20.92'

1

2

5

.
0

0

'

7.61'

1

3

5

.
1

4

'

116.99'62.59'

5

0

.
7

9

'

1

5

0

.
2

8

'

1

4

1

.
2

0

'

1

4

7

.
9

0

'

1

3

1

.
9

9

'

6

3

.
9

6

'

3
8
4
.
6
4
'

5
0
.
1
0
'

3
2
0
.
6
4
'

3
9
0
.
3
7
'

5
0
.
1
0
'

3
7
0
.
7
4
'

5

0

.
1

0

'

5

0

.
1

0

'

1

1

4

.
8

6

'

1

3

3

.
7

6

'

1

2

5

.
6

2

'

1

2

5

.
6

2

'

1

0

8

.
0

1

'

1

4

6

.
9

7

'

7.57'

7.86'

24.16'

C
2

L
=

8
3
.0

5
'

L=3.04'

N25°53'45"E     273.87'

C
9

L=7.65'

L
=

7
0
.2

4
'

BLUE BILL WAY (50' R/W) 1,220 LF

PROPOSED ±1,240 LF

6" PVC WATER MAIN

PROPOSED

FIRE HYDRANT

PROPOSED MAIL CBU

& SCHOOL BUS STOP

TEMPORARY BLOW-OFF ASSEMBLY

S1.0

P
R
E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R
Y
 
P
L
A
T

JHS

KDH

KDH

1" = 60'

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

SCALE

DESIGNED BY

CHECKED BY

D
A
T
E

DRAWN BY

DATE

R
E
V
I
S
I
O

N
 
D

E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O

N

Y
O

U
R
 
V
I
S
I
O

N
 
A
C
H

I
E
V
E
D

 
T
H

R
O

U
G

H
 
O

U
R
S
.

T
h
e
s
e
 
p
l
a
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
d
 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t
s
 
a
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
c
l
u
s
i
v
e
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 
T

I
M

M
O

N
S

 
G

R
O

U
P

 
a
n
d
 
m

a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
r
e
p
r
o
d
u
c
e
d
 
i
n
 
w

h
o
l
e
 
o
r
 
i
n
 
p
a
r
t
 
a
n
d
 
s
h
a
l
l
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
u
s
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
a
n
y
 
p
u
r
p
o
s
e
 
w

h
a
t
s
o
e
v
e
r
,
 
i
n
c
l
u
s
i
v
e
,
 
b
u
t
 
n
o
t

l
i
m

i
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
,
 
b
i
d
d
i
n
g
,
 
a
n
d
/
o
r
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
 
s
t
a
k
i
n
g
 
w

i
t
h
o
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
p
r
e
s
s
 
w

r
i
t
t
e
n
 
c
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
T

I
M

M
O

N
S

 
G

R
O

U
P

.

1
8
0
5
 
W

e
s
t
 
C
i
t
y
 
D

r
i
v
e
,
 
U

n
i
t
 
E
 
|
 
E
l
i
z
a
b
e
t
h
 
C
i
t
y
,
 
N

C
 
2
7
9
0
9

T
E
L
 
2
5
2
.
6
2
1
.
5
0
3
0
 
F
A
X
 
2
5
2
.
5
6
2
.
6
9
7
4
 
 
w

w
w

.
t
i
m

m
o
n
s
.
c
o
m

T
H

I
S
 
D

R
A
W

I
N

G
 
P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D

 
A
T
 
T
H

E

E
L
I
Z

A
B

E
T
H

 
C

I
T
Y

 
O

F
F
I
C

E

S
:
\
1
0
9
\
4
2
8
7
4
 
-
 
S

l
e
e
p
y
 
H

o
l
l
o
w

 
E

s
t
a
t
e
s
-
P

H
A

S
E

 
2
 
-
 
C

a
m

d
e
n
,
 
N

C
\
D

W
G

\
S

h
e
e
t
\
4
2
8
7
4
C

-
p
r
e
l
i
m

.
d
w

g
 
|
 
P

l
o
t
t
e
d
 
o
n
 
4
/
2
3
/
2
0
1
9
 
9
:
4
5
 
A

M
 
|
 
b
y
 
K

i
m

 
H

a
m

b
y

N
O

R
T
H

 
C
A
R
O

L
I
N

A
 
L
I
C
E
N

S
E
 
N

O
.
 
C
-
1
6
5
2

02/20/19

S
L
E
E
P
Y
 
H

O
L
L
O

W
 
E
S
T
A
T
E
S
 
-
 
P
H

A
S
E
 
2

C
O

U
R
T
H

O
U

S
E
 
T
N

S
P
 
-
 
C
A
M

D
E
N

 
C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
N

O
R
T
H

 
C
A
R
O

L
I
N

A

42874

PRELIMINARY PLAT

NOT FOR RECORDATION

OR CONVEYANCE

APR 23, 2019

SITE DATA:

1. OWNERSHIP:

DANIEL CLAY CARTWRIGHT

382 NORTH GREGORY RD

SHAWBORO, NC 27973

PH: 252-202-6645

2. SITE INFORMATION:

PIN: 028935012881690000

SUBDIVISION AREA: 14.57 AC

ZONING: NR (NEIGHBORHOOD RESIDENTIAL)

EXISTING USE: VACANT

PROPOSED USE: RESIDENTIAL

PC 8 PG 163

PROPOSED LOTS: 10

MINIMUM LOT SIZE: 40,000 SQ. FT.

R 2 BUILDING SETBACKS:

50' FRONT

10' SIDE

10' REAR

3. THIS SITE IS LOCATED IN FLOOD ZONES "X", "SHADED X", AND

"AE(4)" ACCORDING TO THE FEMA FLOOD MAPS 3720892600K, DATED

DECEMBER 16, 2005 AND 3720893500J, DATED DECEMBER 21, 2019.

FLOOD ZONES ARE SCALED FROM F.I.R.M.

FLOOD ZONES ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE.

4. THERE ARE NO WETLANDS LOCATED WITHIN THE PROJECT AREA.

VICINITY MAP

NO SCALE

US

158

S

L

E

E

P

Y

 

H

O

L

L

O

W

 

R

D

S

A

W

Y

E

R

S

 

C

R

E

E

K

 

R

D

 

-

 

S

R

 

1

2

0

0

L

A

M

B

S

 

R

D

S

R

 

1

1

4

5

RUN SWAMP RD

SR 1201

SITE

343

LEGEND

PROPOSED CENTERLINE OF DITCH

FLOOD ZONE

EX. TOP OF BANK

EX. CONTOUR

EX. DITCH/SWALE

PROPOSED ACCESS EASEMENT

PROPOSED CULVERT

EX. DRAINAGE EASEMENT

PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

W
PROPOSED WATER MAIN

PROPOSED AGRICULTURAL BUFFER

PROPOSED LOT LINE

BOUNDARY

PROPOSED RIGHT-OF-WAY

EX. POWER POLE

PROPOSED CENTERLINE

EX. RIGHT-OF-WAY

EX. PAVEMENT

W EX. WATER MAIN

EX. CULVERT PIPE

BUILDING SETBACK

PROPOSED CONCRETE

PROPOSED ASPHALT

EX. RIP RAP

0

SCALE 1"=60'

120'60'

5.B.c

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 r

ev
is

ed
 S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 P

H
A

S
E

 2
 P

re
lim

 2
01

90
42

3 
 (

24
12

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



5.B.d

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
  (

24
12

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



5.B.d

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
  (

24
12

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



5.B.d

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
  (

24
12

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



5.B.d

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
  (

24
12

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



5.B.d

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
  (

24
12

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



5.B.d

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
  (

24
12

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



5.B.d

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
  (

24
12

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



5.B.d

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
  (

24
12

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



5.B.d

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
  (

24
12

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



5.B.d

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
  (

24
12

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



5.B.d

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
  (

24
12

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

Page 1 of 26 

Camden County Planning Board 
Regular Meeting 

March 20, 2019 7:00 PM 
Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

Camden, North Carolina 
 

MINUTES 
The regular meeting of the Camden County Planning Board was held on March 20, 2019 in the 
Historic Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina. The following members were present: 

CALL TO ORDER & WELCOME: 
 
Chairman Calvin Leary called the March 20, 2019 meeting to order at 7:00 PM.  The following 
Planning Board and Staff Members were Present: 
 

Planning Board: 
Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Calvin Leary Chairman Present 6:50 PM 
Fletcher Harris Board Member Present 6:50 PM 
Rick McCall Board Member Present 6:50 PM 
Ray Albertson Board Member Present 6:50 PM 
Steven Bradshaw Vice Chairman Absent  
Cathleen M. Saunders Board Member Present 6:50 PM 

 
Staff: 
Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Dan Porter Planning Director Present 6:50 PM 
Dave Parks Permit Officer Present 6:50 PM 
Amy Barnett Planning Clerk Present 6:30 PM 

 
The following were also present: 

Attendee Name Address Purpose Meeting Section 
Chad Williams, 
Keeter Barn LLC 

N. Water Street,  
Elizabeth City, NC 

Applicant for Rezoning New Business (NB),  
Item A 

Jimmy Brickhouse Keeter Barn Rd, Camden NC Adjacent Property Owner NB, Item A 
Dave Klebitz, 
Bissell Professional 
Group 

Kitty Hawk, NC Agent for Applicant, 
Prelim Plat North River 
Crossing 

NB, Item B 

Andrew Monn Trotman Rd, Shiloh, NC Adjacent Property Owner NB, Item B 
Kim Hamby, 
Timmons Group 

Elizabeth City, NC Agent for Applicant, 
Prelim Plan Sleepy Hollow 
Phase II 

NB, Item C 

Jennifer Tillett Sleepy Hollow Rd, Camden NC Adjacent Property Owner NB, Item C 
Aaron Pippen Sleepy Hollow Rd, Camden NC Adjacent Property Owner NB, Item C 
Reginald Tillett Sleepy Hollow Rd, Camden NC Adjacent Property Owner NB, Item C 
Sarah Hamilton Sleepy Hollow Rd, Camden NC Adjacent Property Owner NB, Item C 
Wanda Daniels Sleepy Hollow Rd, Camden NC Adjacent Property Owner NB, Item C 

  

5.B.e

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 2 of 26 

CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA 
Motion to Approve Agenda as Presented 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Fletcher Harris, Board Member 
SECONDER: Ray Albertson, Board Member 
AYES: Leary, Harris, McCall, Albertson, Saunders 
ABSENT: Bradshaw 

CONSIDERATION OF MINUTES - DECEMBER 19, 2018 
Motion to Approve Minutes from December 19, 2018 As Written 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Cathleen M. Saunders, Board Member 
SECONDER: Ray Albertson, Board Member 
AYES: Leary, Harris, McCall, Albertson, Saunders 
ABSENT: Bradshaw 

OLD BUSINESS 
None. 

NEW BUSINESS 
A. UDO 2019-03-04 Rezoning Keeter Barn LLC 
Dave Parks described this agenda item and went over the staff report as incorporated herein 
below: 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

STAFF REPORT 
UDO 2019-03-04 

ZONING MAP AMENDMENT 
 
PROJECT INFORMATION 
 
File Reference: UDO 2019-03-04 
Project Name: N/A 
PIN: 01-7080-00-30-7405 
 
Applicant: Keeter Barn, LLC 
 Chad Williams &  
 Alexander Underhill 
 Address: 205 N. Water St. 
 Elizabeth City, NC 
 Phone: (252) 340-0147 
 Email: 
  

5.B.e

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 3 of 26 

Agent for Applicant: 
 Address 
 Phone: 
 Email: 
 
Current Owner of Record:  Applicant 
 
Meeting Dates: 
 3/1/2019 Neighborhood 
 3/20/2019 Planning Board 
 
Application Received: 3/4/2019 
 By:  David Parks, Permit Officer 
 
Application Fee paid:  $970.00, Check #1001 
 
Completeness of Application:  Application is generally complete 
 
Documents received upon filing of application or otherwise included: 
 A. Rezoning Application  
 B. Deed 
 C. GIS Aerial, Current zoning, Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use and 

CAMA Land Use Plan Suitability Maps 
 D. Neighborhood Meeting Comments 
 
REQUEST:  Rezone approximately 47 acres from Highway Commercial (HC) to 
Village Residential (VR) on property located at intersection of U.S. 17 and 
Keeter Barn Road South Mills Township. 
 
From:  Highway Commercial (HC) – Article 151.3.6.5 (Purpose Statement) 
 
The Highway Commercial district is applied to lots along the County’s major 
roadways (e.g., US 158, US 17, NC 34, and NC 343) and is intended for 
automobile-oriented commercial development as well as large floorplate 
commercial uses and uses that require or generate truck traffic.  The 
district also accommodates agricultural and institutional uses as well as 
higher density residential uses with a special use permit. New development in 
the HC district is grouped and configured to ensure regular lateral vehicular 
and pedestrian access along major transportation routes as a means of 
establishing a well-connected transportation system.  New development is 
configured to maintain high visual quality along the major roadway, or is 
fully screened from view.  Sufficient spacing and screening is included along 
lot lines shared with adjacent residential zoning districts to ensure 
compatibility. New commercial and multi-family developments in the district 
are subject to the design standards in Article 151.5. 
  

5.B.e

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 4 of 26 

To:  Village Residential (VR) – Article 151.3.5.6 (Purpose Statement) 
 
The Village Residential (VR) district is established to accommodate a wide 
range of residential and institutional use types at modest densities on lots 
within and adjacent to designated village centers.  The district allows 
duplexes, live/work units, single-family attached, and single-family detached 
dwellings, but does not allow mobile homes, manufactured homes, or 
conservation subdivisions.  As a means of creating compact, functional 
neighborhoods, the district also allows a wide variety of institutional uses, 
including community centers, day care, schools, assisted living, religious 
institutions, parks, and utilities.  Lots served by public sewer may have 
reduced minimum lot sizes and building height is measured from the base flood 
elevation.  District regulations are intended to support the County’s 
investment in infrastructure by encouraging the development of compact, 
vibrant neighborhoods with a variety of house sizes and types that are 
located in close proximity to complementary institutional uses. Low density 
development comprised of uniform building types or styles is discouraged. 
 
PROJECT LOCATION:  intersection of U.S. 17 and Keeter Barn Road South Mills 
Township 
 
Maps Show: 

Vicinity Map:  Located at intersection US 17 & Keeter Barn Road, South 
Mills, NC 

Drainage Map:  Drains north east to a ditch then south along ditches 
leading to McPherson Ditch 

CAMA Land Suitability Map:  Very High 
Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map:  Rural Residential One Acre 

Lots 
CAMA Future Land Use Map:  Low Density Residential 
Zoning Map:  Current Zoning is Highway Commercial (HC) 

 
SITE DATA 
 
Lot size: Approximately 42 acres. 
Flood Zone: X 
Zoning District(s): Highway Commercial (HC) 
Existing Land Uses: Farmland 
 
Adjacent Zoning & Uses: 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
|            | North       | South      | East             | West           | 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
| Zoning     | Rural       | Highway    | Highway          | Working Lands  | 
|            | Residential | Commercial | Commercial (HC)  | (WL)           | 
|            | (RR)        | (HC)       | /Rural           |                | 
|            |             |            | Residential (RR) |                | 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
| Use & Size | Housing     | Sewer      | South Mills Fire | US 17 / Dismal | 
|            |             | Treatment  | Station /        | Swamp Canal    | 
|            |             | Plant      | Farmland         |                | 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
  

5.B.e

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 5 of 26 

Proposed Use(s):  Residential purposes. 
 
Description/History of property:  Property is located just outside the Core 
Village of South Mills at the corner of U.S. 17 and Keeter Barn Road and is 
currently being farmed by current owner.   Property was advertised for sale 
by previous owner under the current zoning of Highway Commercial (which was 
approved in 2004) with no prospects.  Possible reasons for this maybe; 1) 
Only access for a development would be off Keeter Barn Road as U.S. 17 is a 
limited access corridor; 2) proximity to sewer treatment; 3) lack of 
demand/rooftops. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL  ASSESSMENT 
 
Streams, Creeks, Major Ditches: 
 
Distance & description of nearest outfall:  The property is very flat with a 
minimal outfall ditch located at the southeastern part of the property 
running eastwardly, then turns south through a few farm field then South to 
the McPherson Ditch.  Approximate distance to McPherson Ditch is 3,880 feet.   
See Drainage Map next page. 
 
INFRASTRUCTURE & COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
 
Water: Water lines are located adjacent to property along Keeter Barn Road. 
Sewer: Sewer lines are located adjacent to property along Keeter Barn Road. 
Fire District: South Mills Fire Department adjacent to property. 
Schools: Impact calculated at Development stage. 
Traffic: Generation of traffic will be at development stage.  
 
PLANS CONSISTENCY 
 
CAMA Land Use Plan Policies & Objectives:  Inconsistent.  The CAMA Land Use 
Plan was adopted by the Camden County Board of Commissioners on April 4, 
2005.  The proposed zoning change is inconsistent in that the Future Land Use 
Maps has property identified as Low Density Residential on 1-2 acres or 
greater.  However at the time the plan was adopted, the County had not 
considered connecting residential to sewer to allow for higher density 
residential development due to limited availability of sewer.   The requested 
zoning makes it partially consistent in that it allows for residential 
development but with a higher density based on water/sewer availability. 
 
2035 Comprehensive Plan:  Inconsistent.  The proposed zoning change is 
inconsistent with Comprehensive Plan (Adopted 2012) as Future Land Use Maps 
reflect land as Rural Residential on one acre lots.  Availability of sewer 
for higher density development was more focused within the Core Villages of 
the County at the time the plan was approved.   Requested zoning makes it 
partially consistent in that it allows for residential development, but at a 
higher density based on water/sewer availability. 
 
Comprehensive Transportation Plan:  Consistent AND Inconsistent.  Proposed 
Interstate 87 which is on the States TIP may affect portion of property. 
 
Other Plans officially adopted by the Board of Commissioners:  N/A. 
  

5.B.e

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 6 of 26 

FINDINGS REGARDING ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS: 
 
Will the proposed zoning change enhance the public health, safety or welfare?  
Yes.  Reasoning:   The proposed zoning change will enhance the public health, 
safety, or welfare as it will allow for a mix of higher density of 
residential and commercial uses with the availability of water and sewer 
which both are located adjacent to property.  
 
Is the entire range of  permitted uses in the requested classification more 
appropriate than the range of uses in the existing classification?  Yes.  
Reasoning:     Uses in the requested zoning classification are more 
appropriate as it offers a mix of residential and commercial options.       
The current zoning has been in place since 2004 and has been listed for sale 
by previous owners with no success. 
 
For proposals to re-zone to non-residential districts along major arterial 
roads: 
 

Is this an expansion of an adjacent zoning district of the same 
classification?  N/A  Reasoning: 
 
What extraordinary showing of public need or demand is met by this 
application?  N/A  Reasoning: 

 
Will the request, as proposed cause serious noise, odors, light, activity, or 
unusual disturbances?  No.  Reasoning:  All uses permitted in the requested 
zoning classification should not cause any serious noise, odors, light 
activity, or unusual disturbances. 
 
Does the request impact any CAMA Areas of Environmental Concern?  No.  
Reasoning:  Property is outside any CAMA Areas of Environmental Concern. 
 
Does the county need more land in the zoning class requested?  Yes.  
Reasoning:    The requested VR zoning is a revision as far as definition and 
permitted uses of the previous Mixed Village Residential (R1) (new zoning 
classification approved on February 4, 2019).   Additional zoning of this 
classification is needed in specific areas within and adjacent to Camden’s 
Village areas.   
 
Is there other land in the county that would be more appropriate for the 
proposed uses?  No.  Reasoning:    The location of the property makes it 
appropriate for the proposed uses. 
  

5.B.e

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 7 of 26 

Will not exceed the county’s ability to provide public facilities:  No.  
Reasoning:  The proposed zoning will have an impact on all public facilities, 
how much will be determined at the development of the property. 

• Schools 
• Fire and Rescue 
• Law Enforcement 
• Parks & Recreation 
• Traffic Circulation or Parking 
• Other County Facilities 

 
Is This A Small Scale “Spot” Rezoning Request Requiring Evaluation Of 
Community Benefits?  No. 
 
If Yes (regarding small scale spot rezoning) - Applicants Reasoning: 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
|                | Personal Benefits / Impact | Community Benefits / Impact | 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
| With Rezoning  |                            |                             | 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
| Without        |                            |                             | 
| Rezoning       |                            |                             | 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
STAFF COMMENTARY: 
 
The current zoning on property is inconsistent with the CAMA Plan and 
Comprehensive Plan as the plans reflect property to be zoned as residential.  
The requested zoning according to its Purpose Statement (listed above) fits 
this request as property sits adjacent to South Mills Core Village. 
 
Consistency statement: 
 
The existing zoning and requested zoning are inconsistent with both the CAMA 
and Comprehensive plans as both plans identify property as low density 
residential.   At the time both plans were adopted sewer availability was 
either nonexistent or the use of was focused within the villages where 
available. 
 
Excerpt from Comprehensive Plan – Vision Statement 
 
“New development will be focused within targeted core areas to breathe new 
life into established county villages and to efficiently use existing and 
planned infrastructure and public resources. New housing choices will be made 
available to serve families, young professionals, and retirees. Rural areas 
will maintain prominence in the county, and will continue to serve 
agricultural and forestry production and low density residential 
development.” 
Also, the requested zoning is supported by several action strategies of the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Planning Staff recommends approval of Rezoning Application (UDO 2019-03-04) 
from Highway Commercial to Village Residential. 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------  

5.B.e

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 8 of 26 

Dave Parks continued describing this rezoning application: 
• Applicants Chad Williams and Alex Underhill are present 
• Neighborhood meeting was held at South Mills Fire Department 
• There is one comment from an adjacent property owner 
• Presented paperwork from South Mills Fire Department outlining their concerns 
• Applicant requests to rezone approximately 42 acres from HC to VR 
• Property is located at intersection of US 17 and Keeter Barn Road in South Mills NC 
• Showed a map detailing the location of the core village of South Mills 
• Read the purpose statement for both the Highway Commercial and the Village 

Residential zoning districts (see page 3 above) 
 
Dave Parks introduced Chad Williams, the applicant for this rezoning, who spoke briefly. 
 
Chad Williams, Pudding Ridge Road, South Mills, NC; Applicant for Rezoning 

• Looking to get property rezoned to Village Residential 
• Want to get the most out of the acreage 

 
After Mr. Parks finished going over the staff report, he addressed the comment from adjacent 
property owner and the handout which he had given the Planning Board members.   
 
The comment from the adjacent property owner was simply a desire to be able to connect to 
county sewer. 
 
The handout from the South Mills Fire Department dealt primarily with the approach and landing 
zone for the Nightingale and also the USCG helicopters.  An area of the property to be rezoned 
falls within the 400 foot "protection" zone.  South Mills Fire is concerned that any structures 
built within the zone would put both the structure and the helicopter at risk due to the approach 
path and landing zone.  Also South Mills Fire is concerned that noise and air displacement from 
a helicopter may damage any structure built adjacent to the Fire Department property.  In 
addition, there is some concern regarding the retention pond at the rear of the Fire Department 
property, it will need to be fenced in should a residential development arise out of this rezoning. 
 
Chairman Calvin Leary asked if this meant that nothing could be built in the 400 foot protection 
zone.  Mr. Parks responded that the South Mills Fire Department is requesting that the property 
remain zoned Highway Commercial. 
 
Mr. Parks pointed out that the 400 foot protection zone also includes a large portion of the "back 
yard" of the Fire Department property itself, such that an approach from behind the fire 
department is possible with regard to the 400 foot protection zone. 
 
Dan Porter, Planning Director, commented that this information reflects information brought by 
the South Mills Fire Department and is not a requirement that the county has.  Rezoning is a yes 
or no decision and conditions cannot be placed on it. 
  

5.B.e

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 9 of 26 

Fletcher Harris asked if there was sufficient property clearance for a rear approach of a 
helicopter to land on the South Mills Fire Department's helicopter pad.  Dan Porter responded by 
referring to an image which showed the 400 foot protection zone which also shows that there is 
sufficient property clearance for such landings. 
 
Dave Parks commented that things like the protection zone of the helicopter pad are things that 
would be considered at development stage. 
 
Mr. Porter added that the issues with regard to the South Mills Fire Department's helicopter pad 
would be brought up regardless of whether the property was developed commercial or 
residential, so it really doesn't matter what zoning it is, if it's developed either way, this issue will 
come up. 
 
At this time, Chairman Calvin Leary asked if there were any further questions or comments from 
the board.  Hearing none, he opened the floor to public comment. 
 
Jimmy Brickhouse, Keeter Barn Road, South Mills, NC; Adjacent Property Owner 

• Has a problem with the potential runoff from the property when it is developed.  Afraid 
that water will drain towards his property and cause flood problems for his farm. 

• Stated he is against the rezoning. 
 
Mr. Porter addressed Mr. Brickhouse's concern: 

• If the property is able to connect to county sewer, there is potential for smaller lots 
• If the property is developed as Highway Commercial, then there will be parking lots 
• If the property is developed as Residential, then there will be roof tops 
• Developers must submit a subdivision plan, and they also must submit a stormwater plan 

to show how runoff will be handled 
• Post development runoff cannot exceed the pre development amount of runoff 

o Requires the developer to build any number of different types of ponds, swales, 
etc., to ensure that the runoff post development will be equal or less than the pre 
development rate. 

o Applies to the runoff rate of a 10-year storm, which is about 5.5 or 6 inches in a 
24 hour period. 

o Camden's requirement is several times more than what the state requires. 
• Stormwater runoff is usually an issue that is addressed when a project moves forward. 
• Regardless of whether it is developed as commercial or residential, any development 

must come back to the board and go through a number of processes which includes the 
submission of an engineered stormwater plan, to ensure that the upstream and 
downstream properties are not negatively impacted by the development. 

 
Chairman Calvin Leary asked if there were any further questions or comments, hearing none, he 
called for a motion.  Mr. Parks reminded the board that 2 motions would be required, a 
consistency statement, and a motion to approve or deny. 
  

5.B.e

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 10 of 26 

Motion to Approve Consistency Statement for UDO 2019-03-04 Rezoning Keeter Barn LLC: 
Consistency Statement:  The existing zoning and requested zoning are inconsistent with 
both the CAMA and Comprehensive plans as both plans identify property as low density 
residential.  At the time both plans were adopted sewer availability was either nonexistent 
or the use of was focused within the villages where available. 
 
Excerpt from Comprehensive Plan - Vision Statement 
 
"New development will be focused within targeted core areas to breathe new life into 
established county villages and to efficiently use existing and planned infrastructure and 
public resources.  New housing choices will be made available to serve families, young 
professionals, and retirees.  Rural areas will maintain prominence in the county, and will 
continue to serve agricultural and forestry production and low density residential 
development." 
 
Also the requested zoning is supported by several action strategies of the Comprehensive 
Plan. 
 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Fletcher Harris, Board Member 
SECONDER: Ray Albertson, Board Member 
AYES: Leary, Harris, McCall, Albertson, Saunders 
ABSENT: Bradshaw 

 

Motion to Approve UDO 2019-03-04 Rezoning Keeter Barn LLC 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Cathleen M. Saunders, Board Member 
SECONDER: Ray Albertson, Board Member 
AYES: Leary, Harris, McCall, Albertson, Saunders 
ABSENT: Bradshaw 

 
 
  

5.B.e

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 11 of 26 

B. UDO 2019-02-01 North River Crossing Phase 2 Prelim Plat 
Motion to Recuse Cathleen Saunders from UDO 2019-02-01, North River Crossing Phase 2 
Prelim Plat 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Fletcher Harris, Board Member 
SECONDER: Ray Albertson, Board Member 
AYES: Leary, Harris, McCall, Albertson, Saunders 
ABSENT: Bradshaw 

Cathleen Saunders is recused and will not participate in any board discussion or action pertaining 
to North River Crossing Phase 2 Preliminary Plat. 
 
Dan Porter described this agenda item and went over the staff report as incorporated herein 
below: 
 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

STAFF REPORT 
 

UDO 2019-02-01 
Preliminary Plan North River Crossing 

Phase II Major Subdivision 
 
PROJECT INFORMATION 
 
File Reference: UDO 2019-02-01 
Project Name: North River Crossing 
PIN: 03-8965-00-24-6702 
Applicant: Seaboard Development Alliance LLC/EHP Land Company, Inc 
Address: 2875 Forge Road 
  Toano, VA 23168 
 
 Phone: (757) 869-0001 
 Email: 
 
Agent for Applicant: 
 Address: 
 Phone: 
 Email: 
 
Current Owner of Record: Seaboard Development Alliance, LLC 
 
Meeting Dates: 
2/12/2019 Neighborhood Meeting 
3/06/2019 Technical Review Meeting 
 
Application Received: 2/12/19 
 By: David Parks, Permit Officer 
 
Application Fee paid:  $8,400 Check #003034 
 
Completeness of Application:  Application is generally complete 
  

5.B.e

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 12 of 26 

Documents received upon filing of application or otherwise included: 
 A. Land Use Application 
 B. Preliminary Plan 
 C. Deed 
 D. Perc Tests from Albemarle Regional Health Services on all lots 
 E. Neighborhood meeting comments 
 F. TRC Inputs 
 
PROJECT LOCATION: 
 
Street Address: Off Ditch Bank Road 
Location Description: Shiloh Township 
 
REQUEST: Preliminary Plan Phase II North River Crossing Major Subdivision 

– 42 lots - Article 151.2.3.16 of the Unified Development 
Ordinance.  Phase II will be further phased as 2A, 2B, 2C. 

 
SITE DATA 
Lot size: Approximately 47 acres 
Flood Zone: Zone X 
Zoning District(s): Neighborhood Residential (NR) 
Adjacent property uses: Agriculture, Residential 
Streets: Shall be dedicated to public under control of NCDOT. 
 
Street/Subdivision name: 
 Subdivision name: North River Crossing 
 Street Names: Pamlico, Perquimans, Cape Fear Drives, Chowan, and  

Deep Court’s 
 
Open Space Required: 47 acres X .05 =  2.35 acres (Article 151.3.5.5) 
Landscaping: Landscaping Plan required at Construction Drawings. 
 

Farmland Compatibility Standards: Per Article 151.5.5, a 50’ wide 
vegetative buffer required along all agricultural 
uses.  Indicated on plan. 

 
Recreational Land: Per Article 151.6.1.13 – Developer is requesting to 

pay the fee in lieu of providing land.  Formula:  
1452 sf per lot X 42 (number of lots) = 60,984 sf or 
1.4 acres. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL  ASSESSMENT 
 
Streams, Creeks, Major Ditches:  Development will outfall into the North River. 
 
Distance & description of nearest outfall:  Distance to North River from 
Development is approximately 2000 feet.  There is a maintenance easement 
along a ditch of the Roberts property to which the HOA is responsible to 
maintain in accordance with recorded covenants.  Maintenance easement 
recorded in Camden County Registry of Deeds in BK 301, Pages 817-820. 
  

5.B.e

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 13 of 26 

MAPS SHOW: 
Vicinity Map: Property is located along Ditch Bank Road just south of Cape 

Fear Drive 
 
Preliminary Subdivision Map: Shows phase 2 to be completed in 3 parts.  

Phase 2A is on Ditch Bank Road, Phase 2B is along Cape Fear 
Drive, Perquimans Drive, and Chowan Court.  Phase 2C is along 
Pamlico Drive and Deep Court. 

 
TECHNICAL REVIEW STAFF (SKETCH PLAN) COMMENTS 
 1. South Camden Water.  Approved. 
 2. Albemarle Regional Health Department.  Approved.  Received 42 perc 

tests. 
 3. South Camden Fire Department.  Reviewed no comments. 
 4. Pasquotank EMS (Central Communications).  Subdivision/road names 

approved. 
 5. Sheriff’s Office.  Reviewed no comments. 
 6. Postmaster Elizabeth City.  No response.  Did not attend meeting. 
 7. School Superintendent.  No response.  Did not attend meeting. 
 8. Transportation Director of Schools.  Approved with request that all 

cul-de-sac’s turning radius be a minimum of 43.5 feet. 
 9. Camden Soil & Water Conservationist.  Approved. 
 10. NCDOT.  No response. 
 11. Mediacom.  No response. 
 12. Century Link.  No response. 
 
PLANS CONSISTENCY 
 
CAMA Land Use Plan Policies & Objectives:  Consistent.  CAMA Land Suitability 
Maps has land designated as Moderate Suitability and Future Land Use Maps has 
land designated as Medium Density Residential. 
 
2035 Comprehensive Plan:  Consistent.  Property is consistent with 2035 
Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Maps which has area designated as Rural 
Residential. 
 
Comprehensive Transportation Plan:  Consistent.  Property abuts Ditch Bank 
and Trotman Roads and internal roads will be dedicated to public. 
 
FINDINGS REGARDING ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS: 
 
Endangering the public health and safety?  No.  In staff’s opinion, 
application does not appear to endanger public health and safety. 
 
Injure the value of adjoining or abutting property?  No.  In staff’s opinion, 
application does not appear to injure the value of adjoining or abutting 
property as this is Phase II of existing subdivision. 
  

5.B.e

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 14 of 26 

EXCEED PUBLIC FACILITIES: 
 
Schools:  Yes.  Proposed development will generate 28 students (.67 per 
household X 42 lots).  High School over capacity:  2018/2019 capacity: 570     
Enrollment:  607  -  Capacity does not include modular units for Camden Early 
College. 
 
Fire and rescue:  No.  Approved. 
 
Law Enforcement:  No.  Approved. 
 
~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ 
 
Planning Staff recommends approval of Preliminary Plan for Phase II of North 
River Crossing Subdivision with the following comments. 
 
1. Constructions drawings to reflect turning radius of cul-de-sacs be 

minimum 43.5’ as requested by the Transportation Director of Camden 
County Schools. 

 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Mr. Porter paused going through the staff report about half way through and introduced Dave 
Klebitz with Bissell Professional Group, agent for the applicant, who spoke briefly. 
 
Dave Klebitz, Bissell Professional Group, Kitty Hawk, NC 

• This is for phase 2 of this development 
• Will be completed in 3 sub phases, A, B, and C, as described in the Staff Report Mr. 

Porter just finished going over. 
• Sewer will be septic tanks.  All 42 lots perked. 
• Water will be via public water. 
• Stormwater / drainage will be handled via an expansion of existing ponds / canals 

o Showed pre and post development drainage maps 
o The 3 sub phases all drain to different locations 
o Subphase C drains to areas in phase 1 
o Tiny portion of subphase B located at corner of Perquimans Drive and Ditch Bank 

Road drains to Ditch Bank Road 
• Roads will be to NCDOT Standards 
• 1 cul-de-sac, turning radius for school busses will be about 48 feet. 
• Mail will be in cluster mailboxes as per requirements of the Post Office.  Location of 

cluster mailbox will be along the new entrance / extension of Perquimans Drive which is 
off of Ditch Bank Road, and will be behind Lot 60. 

o New entrance way was going to be in with phase 2B, but as the cluster mailbox 
needs to be located along this part of the road, the first couple hundred feet of the 
new roadway will be constructed with phase 2A. 

• All TRC comments have been addressed 
  

5.B.e

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 15 of 26 

A comment was made that when it rains, sometimes the intersection of Ditch Bank and Trotman 
Roads are like a river as far as drainage is concerned. 
 
Mr. Porter added that originally when they submitted their sketch plan for this overall project, 
there was some discussion about drainage at the north and at the southern end of the canal / ditch 
that leads off of Ditch Bank Road.  They could not get an agreement from the property owner to 
let them clean and maintain that ditch, so all the water from this development goes to the north 
underneath Trotman and out towards Indian Town Creek.  As Mr. Klebitz showed on the 
drainage map, some of the current runoff comes down through Ditch Bank Road.  They are 
actually eliminating some of that runoff so that the only water that will be coming off and onto 
Ditch Bank Road will be the front yards of those houses along that roadway.  Runoff from the 
other sections of the development will be routed elsewhere. 
 
Mr. Porter continued going through the Staff Report.  Mr. Porter commented that this particular 
development was started under the old UDO (Phase 1), and that Phase 2 will be completed under 
the new UDO which was adopted this past February.  The landscaping requirement was one 
change that under the old UDO was required at Preliminary Plat, now under the new UDO it is 
required at construction drawing stage. 
 
After concluding the staff report, Mr. Porter opened the floor to public comment. 
 
Andrew Monn, Trotman Road, Shiloh, NC; Adjacent Property Owner 

• Primary concern is drainage 
• Spoke of effects of Hurricane Matthew and how roads were impassible after the storm 

due to flooding 
• Spoke of culverts in area being clogged and posing a problem for drainage 
• Asked that the culverts be cleaned before turning anything over to a Home Owners 

Association 
 
At this time, Chairman Calvin Leary asked if there were any further questions or comments from 
the board, staff, or public.  Hearing none, he entertained a motion. 
 
Motion to Approve UDO 2019-02-01 North River Crossing Phase 2 Prelim Plat 

RESULT: PASSED [4 TO 0] 
MOVER: Rick McCall, Board Member 
SECONDER: Ray Albertson, Board Member 
AYES: Leary, Harris, McCall, Albertson 
RECUSED: Saunders 
ABSENT: Bradshaw 

 
Mr. Porter commented for public knowledge that this agenda item will be on the April Board of 
Commissioners meeting agenda to set a public hearing date, and the public hearing itself will be 
held in May. 
  

5.B.e

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 16 of 26 

C. UDO 2019-02-18 Sleepy Hollow Estates Phase 2 Preliminary Plan 
Dan Porter described this agenda item and went over the Staff Report as incorporated herein 
below: 
 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
STAFF REPORT 
 
UDO 2019-02-18 
Preliminary Plan Sleepy Hollow Estates 
Phase II Major Subdivision 
 
PROJECT INFORMATION 
 
File Reference: UDO 2019-02-18 
Project Name: Sleepy Hollow Estates 
PIN: 02-8935-01-28-8169 
Applicant: Daniel Cartwright 
Address: 366 N. Gregory Rd, Shawboro, NC 27973 
Phone: (252) 202-6645 
Email: 
 
Agent for Applicant: Timmons Group 
Address: 1805 West City Dr., Unit E, Elizabeth City, NC, 27909 
Phone: (252) 338-2913 
Email: 
 
Current Owner of Record: 
 
Meeting Dates: 
02/19/2019  Neighborhood Meeting 
03/06/2019  Technical Review Meeting 
03/20/2019  Planning Board 
 
Application Received: 2/22/19 
 By: David Parks, Permit Officer 
 
Application Fee paid: $2,000 Check #1210 
 
Completeness of Application:  Application is generally complete 
 
Documents received upon filing of application or otherwise included: 

A. Land Use Application 
B. Preliminary Plan 
C. Agent for Applicant letter 
D. Deed 
E. Pere Tests from Albemarle Regional Health Services 
F. TRC Inputs 

 
PROJECT LOCATION: 
 

Street Address: Off Sleepy Hollow Road Adjacent to address 312 
Location Description: Courthouse Township 

  

5.B.e

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 17 of 26 

REQUEST: Preliminary Plan Phase II Sleepy Hollow Estates Major Subdivision 
- 10 lots - Article 2.3.16 of the Unified Development Ordinance. 

 
MAPS SHOW: 

Vicinity Map:  Property located adjacent to 312 Sleepy Hollow Road 
Zoning Map:  Property is zoned Rural Residential (RR) 
Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map:  Rural Preservation 
CAMA Plan Future Land Use Map:  Medium Density Residential 

 
SITE DATA 
 
Lot size:  Approximately 14 acres 
Flood Zone:  Zone AE/X 
Zoning District(s):  Neighborhood Residential (NR) 
Adjacent property uses:  Agriculture, Residential, Church. 
Streets:  Shall be dedicated to public under control of NCDOT. 
Street/Subdivision name: 

Subdivision name:  Sleepy Hollow Estates 
Street Names:  Blue Bill Way 

Open Space Required:  12 acres X .05 = .61 acres 
Landscaping:  Landscaping Plan required at Construction Drawing. 
Farmland Compatibility Standards:  Per Article 151.5.5, a 50' wide vegetative 

buffer required along all agricultural uses. Indicated on plan. 
Recreational Land:  N/A (Less than 30 lots) Article 151.6.1.13 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 
 
Streams, Creeks, Major Ditches: Sawyers Creek 
Distance & description of nearest outfall: Outfall located at the South-
eastern portion of property through 404 wetlands under Sawyers Creek Road out 
to Sawyers Creek.  Distance is approximately 2,100 feet to culvert. 
 
TECHNICAL REVIEW STAFF COMMENTS 
 

1. South Camden Water.  Approved. 
2. Albemarle Regional Health Department.  Approved. 10 Perc tests 

received. 
3. South Camden Fire Department.  Reviewed with no comments. 
4. Pasquotank EMS (Central Communications). Subdivision/road names 

approved. 
5. Sheriff's Office.  Reviewed with no comments. 
6. Postmaster Elizabeth City.  No response. Did not attend TRC 

meeting. 
7. Superintendent of Schools.  No response. Did not attend TRC 

meeting. 
8. Transportation Director of Schools.  Approved with comments (see 

attached). 
9. Camden Soil & Water Conservationist.  Approved. 
10. NCDOT.  No response. 
11. Mediacom.  No response. 
12. Century Link.  Reviewed no comments. 

  

5.B.e

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 18 of 26 

PLANS CONSISTENCY 
 
CAMA Land Use Plan Policies & Objectives:  Consistent.  CAMA Future Land Use 
Maps has land designated as Medium Density Residential. 
 
2035 Comprehensive Plan:  Inconsistent.  Property Zoned Neighborhood 
Residential (NR) prior to adoption of Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Maps 
which has area designated as Rural Preservation. 
 
Comprehensive Transportation Plan:  Consistent.  Property abuts Sleepy Hollow 
Road (SR 1202) and internal road will be dedicated to public. 
 
FINDINGS REGARDING ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS: 
 
Endangering the public health and safety?  No.  In staff's opinion, 
application does not appear to endanger public health and safety. 
 
Injure the value of adjoining or abutting property?  No.  In staff's opinion, 
application does not appear to injure the value of adjoining or abutting 
property. 
 
EXCEED PUBLIC FACILITIES: 
 
Schools:  Yes.  Proposed development will generate 6 students (.67 per 
household X 9 lots).  High School over capacity: 2018/2019 capacity: 570 
Enrollment: 607 - Capacity does not include modular units for Camden Early 
College 
 
Fire and rescue:  No.  Approved. 
 
Law Enforcement:  No.  Approved. 
 
~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ 
 
Staff recommends approval of Phase II Sleepy Hollow Estates based on current 
by right zoning with the following recommendations: 
 
 

1. Constructions drawings to reflect turning radius of cul-de-sacs be 
minimum 43.5' as requested by the Transportation Director of Camden 
County Schools. 

 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
  

5.B.e

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 19 of 26 

Dan Porter noted that both the applicant, Daniel Cartwright, and his agent, Kim Hamby with 
Timmons Group are both present.  At this time, Mr. Porter asked Ms. Hamby to speak regarding 
this project. 
 
Kim Hamby, Timmons Group, Elizabeth City, NC; Agent for Applicant 

• Propose to develop 10 residential lots on 14.5 acres located between the church and the 4 
lot minor subdivision which are located on Sleepy Hollow Road 

• There will be a single road in 
• Instead of a traditional cul-de-sac, there will be a turn-around, essentially a bulb cul-de-

sac at the 1000 foot limit to meet safety requirements for safety turn around.  We've 
extended the road to meet the County's requirement for interconnectivity should anyone 
desire to develop the adjacent property, they would be able to connect. 

• Site has been evaluated for individual septic systems.  Entire project has been approved 
by ARHS with varying levels of fill from 8 to 18 inches which is typical in this area. 

• Water will be via South Camden Water, with a line run down for hydrants 
• Drainage - there is a lead ditch that goes around the back end south side of the property 

and leads into wetlands at the indicated corner.  The only drainage passing through this 
site at present drains to the wetland.  The ditches on the site extend about 100-150 feet 
onto the property to the north.  What we intend to do is put in a perimeter ditch system 
that will intercept the runoff from the adjacent properties and bring the runoff around the 
site instead of trying to bring it through the lots.  We have started discussions with Greg 
Johnson regarding how the drainage review will be done. 

• If it is found that storage is needed to prevent post development discharge of runoff, it is 
likely that a wide swale will be used to provide for water storage after storms, that will 
still be able to drain down, and that will likely be positioned between the agricultural 
buffer to the south and the backs of the lots on the south side of the proposed road. 

• We've received some comments from the school system about enlarging the pavement 
radius for school bus turn-around, and have reached out to NCDOT to start talking with 
them about what they would prefer to see taking into account the request of a 43.5 foot 
turning radius and NCDOT's right of way requirement of 50 foot, the right of way may 
need to be enlarged as well.  If that becomes the case, there is sufficient property to move 
lot lines around to accommodate this if needed. 

• Mail boxes will be cluster/community mailboxes per Postal requirements 
• Parking will be ADA Compliant, will be one standard parking space and one ADA 

Compliant parking space per lot instead of just having roadside pull offs 
  

5.B.e

Packet Pg. 130

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 20 of 26 

At this time, Dan Porter continued going over the staff report.  Items of note are: 
• Is in the AE flood zone, so will require elevation certificates when lots are developed 
• Lots are surrounded by agricultural, residential, and a church 
• Open space requirement is .61 acres which will likely be accommodated in the buffer that 

is required. 
• A farmland compatibility buffer of 50 feet is required between any agricultural use 

adjacent to residential use 
• Buffers are located on the western and southern parts of the property 
• A 50 foot buffer between the church and the road in the project, which is not a 

requirement, they are doing this on their own.  
• Project outfalls eventually to Sawyer's Creek located at the south eastern portion of the 

property, draining through 404 wetlands 
• New UDO changes the way Stormwater Plans and Permits are handled.  Under the old 

UDO, stamped sealed and approved stormwater plans and state permits were required to 
be submitted prior to preliminary plat.  The New UDO changes all that.  Under the new 
UDO, those plans and permits are still required, but just not at this point.  They have to 
commit to doing that, and we need a letter from the agency stating that they have met all 
the requirements.  What we require for our stormwater requirements is for the applicant 
to identify the amount of watershed area upstream from their project that will be flowing 
into this project, and as Ms. Hamby mentioned, it is pretty minimal for this project.  They 
are also required to identify the downstream outfall.  That is the point at which the pre 
and post development is measured.  The question is how much does this development 
have to model the amount of other water coming from other parts of the property going to 
the ditch / wetlands, and that is still under discussion with Mr. Johnson, the county's 
stormwater engineer. 

• Mr. Greg Johnson has provided a letter stating "Based on inspection and the information 
provided, I recommend that the project proceed to the design stage.  Please include any 
future submittals of plans for the first phase".  Mr. Johnson has approved it at this point 
with the information presented, and he will be involved in the process of approving the 
overall stormwater plan before they can begin construction. 

• Recommending approval of Phase II Sleepy Hollow Estates based on the current by right 
zoning with the recommendation that construction drawings reflect the request by the 
schools regarding 43.5 foot turnaround radius. 

 
Chairman Calvin Leary asked Kim Hamby how the Neighborhood Meeting went.  Ms. Hamby 
responded that there were questions relating to stormwater runoff/drainage, trash during 
construction.  Ms. Hamby went on to say that there will be a 50 foot planted buffer between the 
farmland and the development which should prevent debris from construction from leaving the 
construction site(s).  She added that there were some property owners to the north who had 
property line disputes, but that to her knowledge those have been settled and property has been 
transferred. 
 
Mr. Porter commented that the trash / debris issue is an issue everywhere that construction 
occurs.  It is something that is monitored by the building and code enforcement officials. 
  

5.B.e

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 21 of 26 

Ms. Hamby also stated that the buffer between the development and the church property will be 
maintained and kept up.  She added that this particular buffer may be reduced in size slightly if it 
is found that the lot lines need to be modified.  This is not an issue because the buffer between 
the development and the church is not a requirement. 
 
At this time, Chairman Calvin Leary opened the floor to public comment. 
 
Jennifer Tillett, Sleepy Hollow Road, Camden, NC; Adjacent Property Owner 

• Property owner with property line dispute 
• Did not get deed to property that was transferred to her 

 
Dave Parks stated that the deeds were "quit claims deeds", the survey on this was signed, and the 
deeds were recorded, he did not know why she did not get hers. 
 
Aaron Pippen, Sleepy Hollow Road, Camden, NC; Adjacent Property Owner 

• Also had property line dispute 
• Stated that his claim is still open regarding the land transfer until his property has been 

surveyed, even though paperwork says that the Cartwright's claim has been settled. 
 
Mr. Porter stated that the paperwork Mr. Pippen referred to was a letter from his title insurance 
agent.  Mr. Porter further stated that he is not sure what Mr. Pippen's claim actually is, other than 
that there was a negotiated agreement with regard to where the property line is.  The survey was 
brought to the Planning Department, staff reviewed the survey which had quit claims deeds with 
it.  The survey was signed and walked over to the Register of Deeds office and recorded.  It is up 
to the board whether or not to continue this proceeding given that there is question of 
recordation. 
 
Chairman Calvin Leary voiced his opinion that this agenda item should be tabled pending 
verification that the land transfer issues have been cleared up. 
 
Rick McCall asked if the problem was getting the actual deed or if the problem was with the 
information on the survey.  Mr. Pippen responded that the problem is with the line on the survey.  
He further stated that the developer has his own survey, but to settle the dispute the line has to be 
settled.  They settled their claim and surrendered their right to the disputed property, but for the 
right to that property the line has to be established. 
 
Ms. Hamby stated that the title company is the one who ordered the survey, reviewed the deeds, 
the survey, and the descriptions. 
 
Fletcher Harris stated agreement with Chairman Leary that this item should be tabled pending 
verification of the aforementioned issues. 
 
Mr. Pippen asked if he could speak on other issues with this development.  Chairman Leary 
agreed. 
  

5.B.e

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 22 of 26 

Aaron Pippen, Sleepy Hollow Road, Camden, NC; Adjacent Property Owner 
• He owns a field adjacent to the development.  Referring to a property line on one of the 

maps, stated that there is no 50 foot buffer. 
 
Mr. Porter addressed this concern stating that the uses adjacent to the property line mentioned by 
Mr. Pippen is not a bona fide farm use and so according to the Farmland Compatibility 
Standards, no buffer is required.  The property may be being farmed, but unless it is a bona fide 
farm, no buffer is required. 
 
Mr. Pippen disputed this saying that the property could be farmed by a bona fide farmer.  Mr. 
Porter stated that there is no indication that the property is in fact a bona fide farm.  Dave Parks 
added that to qualify as a bona fide farm, the tract of land has to be greater than 10 acres and it 
has to be registered as a farm use with the Tax Department and be taxed as a farm.  Mr. Parks 
further stated that if a farmer has, for example, a parcel of 100 acres which is a bona fide farm, 
and he has another parcel of 3 acres elsewhere that is in his name, the 3 acre tract qualifies as a 
bona fide farm because he has the larger bona fide farm tract. 
 
Mr. Pippen disputed this and asked for a reading of the ordinance. 
 
Mr. Porter read:  "Except where exempted by this section with regard to exemption, the 
standards in this section shall apply to all major subdivisions, planned developments, special use 
permits, or site plans, on lots or tracts of 5 acres or greater, proposed adjacent to bona fide farm 
or agricultural uses associated with a bona fide farm."  Our interpretation is that if you a 
development that is 5 acres or greater and it is adjacent to a bona fide farm it has to provide a 
farmland compatibility buffer.  This project is greater than 5 acres, but it is not adjacent to a bona 
fide farm.  It may be farmed, but it is not a bona fide farm. 
 
Mr. Pippen again argued that the land is an agricultural use.  Mr. Porter reiterated that it is not a 
bona fide farm or an agricultural use associated with a bona fide farm.  Mr. Pippen believes that 
if a farmer who is associated in his own person with a bona fide farm farms the land, that makes 
it associated with a bona fide farm.  Mr. Porter stated that this is not correct, that to be a bona 
fide farm, the land must meet the General Statutes set forth for such by the State of North 
Carolina. 
 
Mr. Pippen continued on to his next concern:  Cul-de-sacs.  Concern is over the length of the 
dead end road.  Believes that no dead end road should be over 1000 feet in length. 
 
Mr. Porter addressed this by reading section 6.2.3 paragraph K of the new UDO.  "All dead end 
streets (excluding temporary dead end streets) shall be designed as cul-de-sacs, in accordance 
with the following standards:  (1) No cul-de-sac or dead end street shall exceed 1,000 feet in 
length nor be less than 100 feet in length, as measured from the closest street intersection 
centerline.  (2) Cul-de-sacs shall be designed and constructed to meet state standards and 
National Fire Protection Association standards.  (3) The entrance into a cul-de-sac shall be flared 
by sufficient width to ensure proper turning radius for emergency vehicles upon entering and 
exiting the cul-de-sac.  (4) Streets that include roundabouts shall not be considered cul-de-sacs or 
dead end streets."  

5.B.e

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 23 of 26 

Mr. Porter clarified what he believed to be Mr. Pippen's issue:  that the road, a dead end road, is 
proposed to extend beyond 1000 feet.  Mr. Porter stated that staff looked at that and there is 
another section of the UDO, 6.2.3 paragraph I, which deals with external connectivity.  
6.2.3.I(2)(a) states "The arrangement of streets in a development shall provide for the alignment 
and continuation of existing or proposed streets into adjoining lands in those cases in which the 
adjoining lands are undeveloped and deemed appropriate for future development or in which the 
adjoining lands are developed and include opportunities for such connections."  Basically this 
means that if a proposed development is adjacent to a piece of undeveloped land, that it has to 
provide a means of continuing the road way for future use for a time when that land will be 
developed. 
 
Mr. Pippen disputed the external connectivity section saying that 6.2.3(K) says 1000 feet.  Mr. 
Parks stated that if the adjacent property were to be developed and the street connected up, then a 
turn around would not be required.  The turn around is for emergency vehicles and school 
busses, and it meets the requirements. 
 
Cathleen Saunders stated that there is a limit to the ability of emergency vehicles to back up on a 
road way turn around, and that what is proposed is the maximum they would be able to do. 
 
Rick McCall stated that this has more to do with public safety than with the developer.  The road 
has to be able to connect to any future road that may be part of a future development so 
emergency vehicles have access.  There has to be a turn around for emergency vehicles and there 
has to be a means to continue the roadway should a future development occur. 
 
Dan Porter stated that if there were more than 2 lots on the other side of the turn around, it would 
not be allowed.  The fact is that these two lots, whether there is a cul-de-sac or an extension, it 
would be configured differently and the driveways would be different.  There would be no ability 
to create a connectivity to the next project. 
 
Mr. Pippen brought up his next issue:  Harm to the community, specifically schools.  Chairman 
Calvin Leary stated that the school issue has been fully discussed.  Mr. Pippen objected saying 
he had not discussed it.  Mr. Porter stated that the plans for this project were sent to the school 
superintendent and they had no comments on the matter.  The Schools are part of the Technical 
Review Committee.  If they had concerns, they would be included in the board packet for this 
proceeding.   
 
Mr. Pippen continued arguing, Mr. Parks stated that if the school officials were concerned, they 
would be at this meeting. 
 
At this time, Chairman Leary asked if there were any further questions or comments.  Mr. 
Reginal Tillett came forward. 
  

5.B.e

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 24 of 26 

Reginald Tillett, Sleepy Hollow Road, Camden, NC; Adjacent Property Owner 
• Concern is over a right of way at the back of his property that he has used for 40 years, 

whether or not he will get that back. 
 
Mr. Porter asked if he was referring to the farm property.  Mr. Tillett responded yes.  Mr. Porter 
stated that staff did research and could not find a registered easement.  Mr. Porter further stated 
that throughout the county, there are pathways that are used but are not registered as easements 
or rights of way. 
 
Ms. Hamby stated that there has always been a path that runs along the woods line that serviced 
the farm over all these years.  To the best of her knowledge that farm has been farmed by 
someone who assumed they owned that land at that time, and the individual property owners of 
these residential lots did not use that for access to their properties.  The pieces of land that they 
are calling their farm land and that are all a little less than an acre on the backs of their 
properties, they have legal right to access their own properties, and there was no right of way 
ever dedicated across that path for access to those properties, it was just utilized for the farm. 
 
Sarah Hamilton, Sleepy Hollow Road, Camden, NC; Adjacent Property Owner 

• Procedural question:  If the stormwater plan is not required at this point, when will it be, 
and will the public get to see it? 

 
Mr. Porter replied saying that the stormwater plan does not go before a public hearing, it is 
required at construction drawing stage.  The stormwater plan has to undergo a long and drawn 
out effort to ensure compliance with the UDO and the standards therein.  To answer her question, 
he stated that when it is completed, it may be viewed at the Planning Department office. 
 
Aaron Pippen, Sleepy Hollow Road, Camden, NC; Adjacent Property Owner 

• Spoke about the 4 lot minor subdivision that preceded this development 
• Believes the drainage was modified for the second phase of the development 
• Stated that the way the developer states the drainage runs, it doesn't drain that way 
• Stated that drainage was supposed to drain to the swamp, but didn't do that until a ditch 

was cut into the land, and all that did was make it drain to the pond and now that pond 
floods. 

• Stated that developer said there was a pipe for drainage, but there is no pipe 
 
Ms. Hamby stated that the drainage plan is registered in the Registry of Deeds office.  She 
further stated that 2 of the 4 lots drain to the road, and the other 2 drain to the back to the back to 
follow the original patterns at the time that Mr. Hyman took over the property several years ago. 
 
Dan Porter added that it was a 4 lot minor subdivision.  The way minor subdivisions handled 
stormwater prior to the adoption of the new UDO, was for the developer to submit a signed and 
sealed statement stating how the drainage would go, and the county accepted their seal.  Now, 
under the new UDO, 3 or more lot subdivisions must have their stormwater plans reviewed.  
Stormwater plans are recorded at the Register of Deeds.  Mr. Porter added that the engineer said 
there was a pipe under the ditch, and there is some evidence of that, but that is the 4 lot minor 
subdivision that is already completed and done and not part of this proceeding.  

5.B.e

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 25 of 26 

Wanda Daniels, Sleepy Hollow Road, Camden, NC; Adjacent Property Owner 
• Concerned about flooding 
• Floods around the curve and up into her yard 
• Water stands and doesn't drain 

 
Dan Porter stated that Sleepy Hollow Road is in the flood zone and it floods in a lot of places. 
 
Mr. Porter suggested to the board that this matter be tabled pending research into the property 
line disputes / transfers and be brought back to the Planning Board at a later date. 
 
Chairman Leary agreed and called for a motion. 
 
Motion to Table UDO 2019-02-18 Sleepy Hollow Estates Phase 2 Preliminary Plan 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Fletcher Harris, Board Member 
SECONDER: Rick McCall, Board Member 
AYES: Leary, Harris, McCall, Albertson, Saunders 
ABSENT: Bradshaw 

UDO 2019-02-18 Sleepy Hollow Estates Phase 2 Preliminary Plan has been tabled until 
such time as property line disputes have been cleared up. 
 

VI. INFORMATION FROM BOARD & STAFF 
 
Mr. Porter presented the following information: 

• There will be a meeting in April where a commercial site plan will be up for review, a 
piece of land that was sold in the commerce park. 

  

5.B.e

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 26 of 26 

VII. ADJOURN 
Motion to Adjourn 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Ray Albertson, Board Member 
SECONDER: Fletcher Harris, Board Member 
AYES: Leary, Harris, McCall, Albertson, Saunders 
ABSENT: Bradshaw 

Meeting adjourned at 8:42 PM. 

 

 

   
 Chairman Calvin Leary 
 Camden County Planning Board 
 

ATTEST: 

 
 
  
Amy Barnett, Clerk 
Camden County Planning Department 

5.B.e

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
24

12
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – April 17, 2019 

Page 1 of 5 

 

Camden County Planning Board 
Regular Meeting 

April 17, 2019 7:00 PM 
Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

Camden, North Carolina 
 

MINUTES 
The regular meeting of the Camden County Planning Board was held on April 17, 2019 in the 
Historic Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina. The following members were present: 

I.  CALL TO ORDER & WELCOME 
 
Chairman Calvin Leary called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. 
 
Planning Board Members Present: 
Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Calvin Leary Chairman Present 6:50 PM 
Fletcher Harris Board Member Present 6:50 PM 
Rick McCall Board Member Present 7:03 PM 
Ray Albertson Board Member Absent  
Steven Bradshaw Board Member Present 6:50 PM 
Cathleen M. Saunders Board Member Present 6:50 PM 
Nathan Lilley Board Member Present 6:50 PM 

 
Staff members Present: 
Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Dan Porter Planning Director Present 6:40 PM 
Dave Parks Permit Officer Present 6:30 PM 
Amy Barnett Planning Clerk Present 6:30 PM 

 
Others Present: 
Attendee Name / Address Title / Company Meeting Section 
Aaron Pippen, 262 Sleepy 
Hollow Road, Camden NC 

Adjacent Property Owner Old Business # A, 
Sleepy Hollow Estates 

Sean Robey, 154 US 158 E, 
Camden NC 

Eastern Carolina Engineering, 
Agent for Applicant 

New Business # A, 
WAO Garage 

  

5.B.f

Packet Pg. 138

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 P
B

 M
in

u
te

s 
04

17
20

19
  (

24
12

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – April 17, 2019 

 

Page 2 of 5 

INTRODUCTION OF NEW BOARD MEMBER 
Planning Director Dan Porter introduced Nathan Lilley of Camden, NC, newest member of the 
Planning Board. 

IV.  OLD BUSINESS 
Old Business - UDO 2019-02-18 Preliminary Plan Phase 2 Sleepy Hollow Estates 
 
Dan Porter described this Old Business item.  This item was heard at the March 20, 2019 
meeting of the Camden County Planning Board.  At that meeting, adjacent property owners 
spoke of property line disputes between their property lines and the developer's property.  It was 
decided by the Board to table this item until such time as the disputes had been cleared up.  Staff 
consulted with County Attorney John Morrison who advised in writing that property line 
disputes are a matter for the courts and not governmental boards such as the Planning Board or 
Board of Commissioners.  Dan Porter summarized the letter which Attorney Morrison wrote: 
 

• Property line disputes are between property owners 
• Planning Board, Board of Commissioners, and Planning Staff do not have the right to 

intervene in such disputes 
• Property line disputes are a matter for the courts 
• If a developer decides to proceed, he does so at his own risk, even if he knows that at 

some point in the future the property lines may be disputed in court 
  

5.B.f

Packet Pg. 139

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 P
B

 M
in

u
te

s 
04

17
20

19
  (

24
12

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – April 17, 2019 

 

Page 3 of 5 

• From letter:  "Although this may seem surprising to the public, it makes common sense 
upon even brief reflection.  If the Planning Board or the Board of Commissioners had the 
authority to stop development because of title concerns, any citizen could make an 
objection and bring development to a halt." 

 
Chairman Calvin Leary stated that considering the advice of the County Attorney on this, and 
since the reason for tabling this item was due to property line disputes, all discussion was 
handled at the prior meeting.  Chairman Leary also stated that there shall be no further discussion 
except one person who called him at his residence.  Chairman Leary had promised Aaron Pippen 
5 minutes worth of time to speak. 
 
Aaron Pippen, 262 Sleepy Hollow Road, Camden, NC; Adjacent Property Owner 

• Stated he spoke with the person who wrote the UDO and he said that as long as 
association with a bona fide farmer who is farming your piece of property can be shown, 
then that is what it was written for. 

 
Rick McCall asked if that person was present.  Dan Porter stated that he was not, and further 
stated that the person referenced was the consultant on the UDO. 
 
Dan Porter passed out a handout which was an excerpt of the North Carolina General Statutes 
which define what the State of North Carolina considers to be a Bona Fide Farm. 
 
Chairman Leary asked for confirmation that this was covered at the last meeting.  Mr. Porter 
stated it was but that he didn't have the legal reference at that meeting. 
 
Mr. Porter read from NCGS §153A-340(b)(2): 
 

"For Purposes of determining whether a property is being used for bona fide farm 
purposes, any of the following shall constitute sufficient evidence that the property is 
being used for bona fide farm purposes: 

a. A farm sales tax exemption certificate issued by the Department of Revenue 
b. A copy of the property tax listing showing that the property is eligible for 

participation in the present use value program pursuant to G.S. 105-277.3. 
c. A copy of the farm owner's or operator's Schedule F from the owner's or 

operator's most recent federal income tax return. 
d. A forest management plan." 

 
Mr. Porter stated that none of the 4 criteria listed above are on record for the adjacent property in 
question and that it does not qualify as a bona fide farm. 
 
Mr. Pippen asked Mr. Porter to read the County Ordinance relating to this matter. 
  

5.B.f

Packet Pg. 140

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 P
B

 M
in

u
te

s 
04

17
20

19
  (

24
12

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – April 17, 2019 

 

Page 4 of 5 

After handing out a copy of the ordinance to the Board members, Mr. Porter read from the 
Farmland Compatibility Standards in the UDO, section 5.5.2 Applicability: 
 

"Except where exempted by Section 5.5.3, Exemptions, the standards in this section shall 
apply to all major subdivisions, planned developments, special use permits, or site plans 
on lots or tracts of five acres in area or greater proposed adjacent to a bona fide farm or 
agricultural use associated with a bona fide farm." 

 
Mr. Pippen keyed on this section contending that his property is "associated with a bona fide 
farm" if a farmer who is a bona fide farmer and who owns and operates a bona fide farm is 
farming his property. 
 
Chairman Leary stated that having none of the 4 criteria required by the State of North Carolina, 
the adjacent property can not be considered a bona fide farm. 
 
Mr. Pippen stated his belief that the 4 criteria are what constitutes a bona fide farm, he contends 
that his property is an associated use of a bona fide farm and not a bona fide farm itself. 
 
Steven Bradshaw asked what was the point of this discussion.  Mr. Pippen stated that the point 
was to obtain a 50 foot buffer between his property and the proposed development.  He further 
contended that the "one who wrote the UDO" said that if the property is a bona fide farm or 
associated with a bona fide farm that a 50 foot buffer should be applied. 
 
Rick McCall again asked if that person was present.  He further stated that the reason he asks this 
is because at the last meeting Mr. Pippen referred to information given to him by the 
Superintendent of Schools, but the Superintendent was not present to clarify statements made in 
his name.  The same holds true of the person Mr. Pippen refers to as the "one who wrote the 
UDO". 
 
Steve Bradshaw stated for clarification sake that the UDO was a collaborative effort, not written 
by any one individual, the Planning Board and Board of Commissioners among others all had a 
hand in it's writing, and have intimate knowledge of it's contents. 
 
At this time, Chairman Leary stated that Mr. Pippen's 5 minutes were up.  Mr. Pippen questioned 
why the time limit was applied.  Chairman Leary stated that at the beginning of this agenda 
item's discussion he had stated that there was to be no further discussion except the information 
from the County Attorney relating to the property lines and the 5 minutes he was allowing for 
Mr. Pippen to speak because he had promised such earlier in the week via a phone conversation 
with Mr. Pippen. 
 
At this time, Chairman Leary entertained a motion on this agenda item.  

5.B.f

Packet Pg. 141

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 P
B

 M
in

u
te

s 
04

17
20

19
  (

24
12

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – April 17, 2019 

 

Page 5 of 5 

Motion to Approve UDO 2019-02-18 Preliminary Plan Phase 2 Sleepy Hollow Estates 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Fletcher Harris, Board Member 
SECONDER: Rick McCall, Board Member 
AYES: Leary, Harris, McCall, Bradshaw, Saunders, Lilley 
ABSENT: Albertson 

5.B.f

Packet Pg. 142

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 P
B

 M
in

u
te

s 
04

17
20

19
  (

24
12

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Public Hearings 

 

Item Number: 5.C 

Meeting Date:   June 03, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Sally Norfleet, 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Proposed FY 19-20 Budget 

 

Attachments: FY 19-20 Budget Message (PDF) 

FY 19-20 Schedule of Changes Per BOC (PDF) 

FY 19-20 Budget Ordinance (PDF) 

FY 19-20 Schedule of Fees (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

The annual budget process requires a public hearing to allow opportunity for public input on 

the next fiscal year's budget.  The attached documents include a synopsis of the changes 

discussed during the budget work sessions conducted in May, as well as a copy of the proposed 

Budget Ordinance for adoption.  The County Fee Schedule is also included to be adopted with 

the budget ordinance. 

Recommendation: 

Upon completion of hearing, add the 19-20 Budget Ordinance to the agenda.  Approve attached 

19-20 Budget Ordinance along with Fee Schedule. 

5.C

Packet Pg. 143



5.C.a

Packet Pg. 144

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 B
u

d
g

et
 M

es
sa

g
e 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.a

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 B
u

d
g

et
 M

es
sa

g
e 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.a

Packet Pg. 146

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 B
u

d
g

et
 M

es
sa

g
e 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.a

Packet Pg. 147

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 B
u

d
g

et
 M

es
sa

g
e 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.a

Packet Pg. 148

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 B
u

d
g

et
 M

es
sa

g
e 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.a

Packet Pg. 149

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 B
u

d
g

et
 M

es
sa

g
e 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.b

Packet Pg. 150

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
C

h
an

g
es

 P
er

 B
O

C
  (

24
16

 :
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 B
u

d
g

et
)



5.C.c

Packet Pg. 151

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 B
u

d
g

et
 O

rd
in

an
ce

  (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.c

Packet Pg. 152

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 B
u

d
g

et
 O

rd
in

an
ce

  (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.c

Packet Pg. 153

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 B
u

d
g

et
 O

rd
in

an
ce

  (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.c

Packet Pg. 154

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 B
u

d
g

et
 O

rd
in

an
ce

  (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.c

Packet Pg. 155

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 B
u

d
g

et
 O

rd
in

an
ce

  (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.c

Packet Pg. 156

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 B
u

d
g

et
 O

rd
in

an
ce

  (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.c

Packet Pg. 157

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 B
u

d
g

et
 O

rd
in

an
ce

  (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.c

Packet Pg. 158

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 B
u

d
g

et
 O

rd
in

an
ce

  (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.c

Packet Pg. 159

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 B
u

d
g

et
 O

rd
in

an
ce

  (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.c

Packet Pg. 160

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 B
u

d
g

et
 O

rd
in

an
ce

  (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.c

Packet Pg. 161

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 B
u

d
g

et
 O

rd
in

an
ce

  (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.c

Packet Pg. 162

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 B
u

d
g

et
 O

rd
in

an
ce

  (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.c

Packet Pg. 163

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 B
u

d
g

et
 O

rd
in

an
ce

  (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.c

Packet Pg. 164

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 B
u

d
g

et
 O

rd
in

an
ce

  (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.d

Packet Pg. 165

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
F

ee
s 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.d

Packet Pg. 166

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
F

ee
s 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.d

Packet Pg. 167

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
F

ee
s 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.d

Packet Pg. 168

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
F

ee
s 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.d

Packet Pg. 169

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
F

ee
s 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.d

Packet Pg. 170

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
F

ee
s 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.d

Packet Pg. 171

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
F

ee
s 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.d

Packet Pg. 172

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
F

ee
s 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.d

Packet Pg. 173

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
F

ee
s 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.d

Packet Pg. 174

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
F

ee
s 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.d

Packet Pg. 175

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
F

ee
s 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.d

Packet Pg. 176

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
F

ee
s 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.d

Packet Pg. 177

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
F

ee
s 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.d

Packet Pg. 178

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
F

ee
s 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.d

Packet Pg. 179

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
F

ee
s 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.d

Packet Pg. 180

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
F

ee
s 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.d

Packet Pg. 181

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
F

ee
s 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.d

Packet Pg. 182

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
F

ee
s 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.d

Packet Pg. 183

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
F

ee
s 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.d

Packet Pg. 184

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
F

ee
s 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5.C.d

Packet Pg. 185

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
F

ee
s 

 (
24

16
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 B

u
d

g
et

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Public Hearings 

 

Item Number: 5.D 

Meeting Date:   June 03, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Proposed FY 19-20 Capital Improvement Program 

 

Attachments: CIP 2019-2023 (PDF) 

 

Recommendation: 

Upon completion of public hearing, add the 2019-2023 Capital Improvement Program to the 

agenda.  Approve attached 2019-2023 Capital Improvement Program. 

5.D

Packet Pg. 186



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 187

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

IP
 2

01
9-

20
23

  (
24

17
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 188

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

IP
 2

01
9-

20
23

  (
24

17
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 189

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

IP
 2

01
9-

20
23

  (
24

17
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 190

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

IP
 2

01
9-

20
23

  (
24

17
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 191

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

IP
 2

01
9-

20
23

  (
24

17
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 192

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

IP
 2

01
9-

20
23

  (
24

17
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 193

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

IP
 2

01
9-

20
23

  (
24

17
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 194

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

IP
 2

01
9-

20
23

  (
24

17
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 195

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

IP
 2

01
9-

20
23

  (
24

17
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 196

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

IP
 2

01
9-

20
23

  (
24

17
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 197

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

IP
 2

01
9-

20
23

  (
24

17
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 198

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

IP
 2

01
9-

20
23

  (
24

17
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 199

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

IP
 2

01
9-

20
23

  (
24

17
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 200

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

IP
 2

01
9-

20
23

  (
24

17
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 201

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

IP
 2

01
9-

20
23

  (
24

17
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 202

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

IP
 2

01
9-

20
23

  (
24

17
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 203

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

IP
 2

01
9-

20
23

  (
24

17
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 204

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

IP
 2

01
9-

20
23

  (
24

17
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 205

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

IP
 2

01
9-

20
23

  (
24

17
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 206

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

IP
 2

01
9-

20
23

  (
24

17
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.A 

Meeting Date:   June 03, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Lisa Anderson 

 
Item Title   April Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: 20190528103618935.pdf (PDF) 

April monthly report (PDF) 

 

Summary:  April Monthly Report 

 

Recommendation:  Review and approve 

6.A

Packet Pg. 207



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 208

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

52
81

03
61

89
35

.p
d

f 
 (

24
15

 :
 A

p
ri

l M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 209

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

52
81

03
61

89
35

.p
d

f 
 (

24
15

 :
 A

p
ri

l M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 210

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

52
81

03
61

89
35

.p
d

f 
 (

24
15

 :
 A

p
ri

l M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
)



6.A.b

Packet Pg. 211

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
ri

l m
o

n
th

ly
 r

ep
o

rt
  (

24
15

 :
 A

p
ri

l M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
)



6.A.b

Packet Pg. 212

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
ri

l m
o

n
th

ly
 r

ep
o

rt
  (

24
15

 :
 A

p
ri

l M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
)



6.A.b

Packet Pg. 213

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
ri

l m
o

n
th

ly
 r

ep
o

rt
  (

24
15

 :
 A

p
ri

l M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
)



6.A.b

Packet Pg. 214

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
ri

l m
o

n
th

ly
 r

ep
o

rt
  (

24
15

 :
 A

p
ri

l M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.B 

Meeting Date:   June 03, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   South Mills VFD Fire Engine Request 

 

Attachments: SMVFD Request (DOCX) 

 

See attached. 

6.B

Packet Pg. 215



  
       

 

 
Dear County Commissioners, 

 

Thank you in advance for your time and support. The South Mills Volunteer Fire Department is seeking your 

approval to purchase a new Fire Engine. In our current fleet we have three engines one tanker two brush trucks 

and one service truck. We have two engines that are 30years old but still in service. These trucks are custom 

Pierce pumpers. These will remain in service and are still in good shape for a 30year old truck. The purpose for 

this new Custom Pierce Heavy Duty Rescue Pumper is too ensure we have the means and reliability to answer 

all the calls well into the next few generations. We run different types of rescue calls than we did in years past. 

We need a truck that can carry the extra equipment needed to answer these calls. We will also take our current 

service truck out of the fleet as it is a 1982 truck which needs to be retired due to maintenance cost and NFPA 

compliance issues. This truck is a part of our plan to continue to serve our growing community in the best way 

possible. Below is our Finance plan that we are asking you to approve tonight. We will be purchasing this truck 

through HGAC  Buy, which gives us Government pricing and this gives us the ability to group purchase. I am 

available to answer any questions that you may have. Thanks again for your support of our Department and our 

great volunteers.   

 

Truck Price: $757,824.00 

Down Payment From Fund Reserve: $250,000.00 

Loan Amount: $507,824.00 

Finance Rate: 3.84% 

Term: 12yr 

Annual Payment: $53,913.00 

Sincerely, 

Tommy Banks, Chief 252-202-1027                  

South Mills Volunteer Fire Department 

5/21/2019 

 

 
 

South Mills Volunteer Fire Department 
127 Keeter Barn Road 

PO Box 24 

South Mills, NC 27976 

(252) 771-2772 
 

6.B.a

Packet Pg. 216

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

M
V

F
D

 R
eq

u
es

t 
 (

24
13

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

V
F

D
 F

ir
e 

E
n

g
in

e 
R

eq
u

es
t)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.C 

Meeting Date:   June 03, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Sally Norfleet, 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Resolution 2019-06-01: Salaries & Compensation for Various 

Boards and Commissions 

 

Attachments: Resolution 2019-06-01 (DOC) 

 

Recommendation: 

Approve and adopt resolution. 

6.C

Packet Pg. 217



 
 

Resolution No. 2019-06-01 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE 

CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

SALARIES AND COMPENSATION  

FOR VARIOUS BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS  

FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 

 

 

Whereas, the Camden County Board of Commissioners desires to provide reasonable 

compensation for service on various boards and commissions of the County; 

 

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Camden County Board of Commissioners meeting this 

3rd day of June 2019 in Camden Village, Camden County, North Carolina does hereby amend 

the following salaries and compensation for the stated boards and commissions  for the period 

beginning  July 1, 2019 and  ending  June 30, 2020, 

 

 

Section 1:  BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

Chairman $550.00 per month plus mileage. 

 

Vice-chairman/ $525.00 per month plus mileage.  

Board Member  

  

1. The monthly “salary” of the Board members shall be considered as 

compensation for regularly scheduled meetings of the board per the annual 

Meeting Calendar. Same day attendance at meetings will not be eligible 

for reimbursement – i.e., a closed session in advance of a board meeting.  

 

2. Board members attending Special Meetings and Budget Work Sessions 

will be compensated at a rate of $75 per meeting. Board members will be 

compensated up to $75 for attendance at other board meetings they have 

been appointed to and not already compensated for by those boards.    

 

3. For purposes of reimbursement, eligible meetings would include those in 

which the board members serve and participate by virtue of their position 

and/or in representation of their position as a board member and/or are an 

invited “participant” by staff or agency/department and may include 

Association Ad Hoc Committee meetings, Ground Breakings and Ribbon 

Cuttings or any meeting at the request of the Board of Commissioners in 

the Commissioner’s official capacity.   

 

 

6.C.a

Packet Pg. 218

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
06

-0
1 

 (
24

06
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 2

01
9-

06
-0

1:
 S

al
ar

ie
s 

&
 C

o
m

p
en

sa
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
V

ar
io

u
s 

B
o

ar
d

s 
an

d
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
s)



4. The following are not reimbursable expenses:  Attendance to social 

occasions (banquets, meals (except as part of a participatory meeting), 

entertainment, sports, galas, fundraisers, clubs, etc.), or informal or 

telephonic conversations. Also alcoholic beverages, political 

contributions, tips greater than 18%, parking or traffic violations / fines, 

entertainment expenses such as tickets to sporting events or theaters, and 

in room movies.  For any fundraisers the board decides to attend, the 

County will pay for the ticket if the Commissioner’s agree that the event 

benefits Camden County residents and serves a public purpose, however,   

they will not receive meeting pay for attendance. (Must be non-partisan 

and non-profit.) 

 

5. Attendance at Board appointed Board Meetings (i.e. Library, DSS, ADJ) 

will not be reimbursable to Commissioners who are not appointed to those 

boards unless they are requested to attend by the appointee who is unable 

to attend or at the request of the Board of Commissioners in the 

Commissioner’s official capacity.  

 

6. Commissioners shall receive a payment of $150.00 per day for any 

meeting or day for travel to/from meeting, lasting more than four (4) hours 

and out of the county (90 mile radius of the Courthouse).   

 

7. Board members are required to submit in writing a payment request in the 

form of an expense report (via internal form) to the Finance Officer not 

later than the last business day of each month. The report will contain all 

expenses including compensation along with a description of the meeting, 

date, time and place.  

 

8. Special meeting reimbursement requests that exceed seven (7) in a month 

will require Board approval. 

 

Section 2:  BOARD OF ELECTIONS 

 

Chairman Compensation - $50 for meeting with Board. $50 per day for Election 

Day, canvass day, and instruction day plus mileage. 

 

Board Members Compensation - $40 per meeting with Board. $40 per day on Election Day 

and canvass day plus mileage. 

 

Chief Judge Compensation - $40 per day for instruction day and canvass day plus 

mileage.  $150.00 per day for Election Day plus mileage.  $20 for pick-up 

day. 

 

Judges Compensation - $20 for instruction day.  Election Day at $120.00 per day. 

 

Assistants Compensation - $20 for instruction day. Election Day at $100.00 per day.   

 

Section 3: PLANNING BOARD AND ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS 

 Compensation - $30.00 per meeting plus mileage. 

6.C.a

Packet Pg. 219

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
06

-0
1 

 (
24

06
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 2

01
9-

06
-0

1:
 S

al
ar

ie
s 

&
 C

o
m

p
en

sa
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
V

ar
io

u
s 

B
o

ar
d

s 
an

d
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
s)



 

Section 4:  SOCIAL SERVICES BOARD 

 

Chairman  Compensation - $35.00 per meeting plus mileage. 

 

Board Members Compensation - $30.00 per meeting plus mileage. 

 

 

Section 5:  AGING ADVISORY COUNCIL 

                                   Compensation - $30.00 per meeting, plus mileage and meal if required. 

 

Section 6:                   RECREATION BOARD 

   Compensation - $30.00 per meeting, plus mileage. 

 

Section 7:                   JURY COMMISSION   

 Compensation - $ 7.25 per hour for hours worked compiling jury list. 

 

Section 8:  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD 

              Compensation - $30.00 per meeting, plus mileage. 

 

Section 9:  SENIOR CENTER BOARD 

   Compensation - $30.00 per meeting, plus mileage . 

 

Section 10:  LIBRARY BOARD 

   Compensation - $30.00 per meeting, plus mileage. 

 

Section 11:  AGRICULTURAL ADVISORY BOARD & FIRE COMMISSIONS 

   No Compensation 

 

Section 12:  TRAVEL & MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT 

All Boards and Commissions are subject to the approved Camden County 

Travel Policy. Mileage will be computed based on home of record and 

return.  Mileage will be reimbursed at the rate established by the Federal 

Mileage Reimbursement Rate for travel as allowed in IRS Publication 15 

for all compensable meetings. Any volunteer or non-paid meetings will 

not qualify for travel or mileage reimbursement without Board of 

Commissioners approval. 

   

Adopted this the 3rd day of June 2019. 

 

 

                                                                         _________________________________________ 

                                                                         George T. White, Chairman 

       Camden County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Karen M. Davis, NCCCC 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners   

6.C.a

Packet Pg. 220

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
06

-0
1 

 (
24

06
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 2

01
9-

06
-0

1:
 S

al
ar

ie
s 

&
 C

o
m

p
en

sa
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
V

ar
io

u
s 

B
o

ar
d

s 
an

d
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.D 

Meeting Date:   June 03, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Charlie Bauman, Director 

 Economic Development 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Resolution 2019-06-02: Chesapeake Regional Healthcare 

Building Reuse Project 

 

Attachments: Resolution 2019-06-02 (DOC) 

 

Summary: 

Chesapeake Regional Healthcare is making application for a grant through the N.C. 

Department of Commerce to assist in the interior build out of the Camden Primary Care Clinic 

at Town Center. 

 The total grant amount requested is $50,000.00.  Camden County’s local incentive grant 

of $13,460.00 will serve as the local match as required. 

 A formal site visit by N.C. Commerce representatives occurred on Friday, May 31st.  

 Chesapeake Regional Healthcare has recently submitted materials to the County for a 

building permit. 

 Estimated opening of the clinic is August 2019. 

 

Recommendation: 

Approve and adopt resolution. 

6.D

Packet Pg. 221



 

Resolution 2019-06-02 

 

A Resolution by the Camden County Board of Commissioners for the 

North Carolina Department of Commerce Building Reuse Program 

“Chesapeake Regional Healthcare Building Reuse Project” 

 

WHEREAS, The North Carolina General Assembly has authorized funds to stimulate economic 

development and job creation in distressed areas through constructing critical water and wastewater 

facilities, addressing technology needs, renovating vacant buildings, and implementing research and 

demonstration projects, and 

 

 

WHEREAS, the County has need for and intends to assist in the renovation of a vacant building in a 

project described as the "Chesapeake Regional Healthcare Building Reuse Project”; and  

 

 

WHEREAS, the County intends to request funding assistance from the North Carolina Department of 

Commerce from its Building Reuse Program for the project; 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS: 

That the County is in full support of the application and the project, if funding is received, and 

 

That the County will arrange for a local match of approximately $13,460 in the form of incentives to the 

company, and 

 

That the County has substantially complied or will substantially comply with all State, and local laws, 

rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the project and to the grants pertaining thereto, and 

that Kenneth Bowman, County Manager, is authorized to execute any additional documents pertaining to 

the grant application as requested by the North Carolina Department of Commerce. 

 

Adopted this the 3rd day of June 2019 in Camden, North Carolina. 

      

        

             

Tom White, Chairman 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________________ 

Karen M. Davis, NCCCC 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners    

 

6.D.a

Packet Pg. 222

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
06

-0
2 

 (
24

07
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 2

01
9-

06
-0

2:
 C

h
es

ap
ea

ke
 R

eg
io

n
al

 H
ea

lt
h

ca
re

 B
u

ild
in

g
 R

eu
se

 P
ro

je
ct

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 7.A 

Meeting Date:   June 03, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Kim Perry, 

 Library 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Library Board 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

It is the request of staff that Monique Chamblee, Anita Cuthrell and Nell Morrison be 

reappointed to the Library Board for an additional term. 

Recommendation: 

Approve reappointments. 

7.A

Packet Pg. 223



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 7.B 

Meeting Date:   June 03, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   DSS Advisory Board 

 

Attachments: Monique Chamblee_DSS Board (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

Monique Chamblee has applied to serve on the Advisory Board for the Department of Social 

Services. 

Recommendation: 

Approve. 

7.B

Packet Pg. 224



7.B.a

Packet Pg. 225

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

iq
u

e 
C

h
am

b
le

e_
D

S
S

 B
o

ar
d

  (
24

05
 :

 D
S

S
 A

d
vi

so
ry

 B
o

ar
d

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.A 

Meeting Date:   June 03, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Minutes - May 2, 2019 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_050219 (DOCX) 

 

8.A

Packet Pg. 226



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 2, 2019 – 2:00 PM 

2019-2020 Budget/Finance/CIP Work Session 

Historic Courtroom 

Camden, North Carolina 

 

MINUTES 

 

The Camden County Board of Commissioners held a budget work session on May 2, 2019 at 

2:00 PM in the Historic Courtroom. 

 

Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Tom White at 2:00 PM.  Additional Board 

members present: Vice Chairman Clayton Riggs, Commissioners Garry Meiggs and Randy 

Krainiak.  Ross Munro joined the meeting at 6:10 PM. 

 

Staff Present: County Manager Ken Bowman, Finance Officer Sally Norfleet and Clerk to the 

Board Karen Davis.  County Attorney John Morrison was present for the Closed Session only. 

 

Capital Improvement Program 2019-2023 

County Manager Ken Bowman presented a general overview of the proposed budget and 

discussed the following Capital Improvement Program projects: 

 

 Approved/Funded 

 Public Services Complex 

 Broadband  

 Recommended/Unfunded 

 Camden High School – School Capital Improvements 

 US 158 Sewer Service Expansion – Country Club Area 

 Identified/Unfunded 

 Filtration Pond-South Mills Water Treatment Plant 

 Construction of Additional Raw Water Wells 

 US 158 Sidewalk Extension 

 

Schedule 

The Board of Commissioners met with the following to discuss matters relating to the FY 2019-

2020 Budget: 

 

 Special Appropriations - Ken Bowman 

 College of the Albemarle President, Dr. Robert Wynegar, addressed the Board 

and presented an update with a request for continued funding. 

 Tax Administration - Lisa Anderson 

 Planning & Inspections - Dan Porter 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 227

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
02

19
  (

24
19

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 2

, 2
01

9)



 Buildings & Grounds and South Camden Water & Sewer – David Credle 

 

At 3:45 PM Chairman White recessed the meeting until 4:00 PM. 

 

Closed Session 

At 4:00 PM, Chairman County Attorney John Morrison arrived and Vice Chairman Clayton 

Riggs offered a motion to go into Closed Session to consult with the Mr. Morrison in regard to 

possible litigation.  The motion passed unanimously with four commissioners voting aye, no 

commissioner voting no and one commissioner absent.   

 

At 4:45 PM, Commissioner Garry Meiggs offered a motion to come out of Closed Session.  The 

motion passed unanimously with four commissioners voting aye, no commissioner voting no and 

one commissioner absent.   

 

Chairman White recessed the meeting at 5:10 PM for a dinner break. 

 

Schedule 

Chairman White reconvened the meeting at 5:40 PM and continued with the following: 

 Sheriff’s Office / SRO – Kevin Jones 

 Board of Education / School Capital Projects / Reserve – Dr. Joe Ferrell 

 Other Budget Items – Ken Bowman 

 Solid Waste Fee 

 Cooperative Extension 

 Library Lease 

 Senior Center 

 Non-Departmental 

 Debt Service 

 Community Parks 

 DSS 

 Fee Schedule 

 

After discussion, the following proposed budget changes were decided by consensus of the 

Board: 

 Planning Vehicle Request – Not funded 

 Medical Building – Reduce by $29,070 

 Sheriff Uniform Request – Reduce by $14,000 

 Sheriff Vehicle Request – Reduce by $34,300 

 Solid Waste Fee – Set fee at $75.00 

 Highway 17 Fund – Not funded 

 NC Alliance – Not funded 

 College of the Albemarle – Increase by $5,000  

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 228

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
02

19
  (

24
19

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 2

, 2
01

9)



There being no further matters for discussion Chairman White entertained a motion to adjourn.   

Commissioner Garry Meiggs offered a motion to adjourn.  The motion passed unanimously with 

four commissioners voting aye, no commissioner voting no and one commissioner absent.   

 

Chairman White adjourned the meeting at 8:07 PM.   

 

             

      Tom White, Chairman 

      Camden County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Karen M. Davis, NCCCC 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 229

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
02

19
  (

24
19

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 2

, 2
01

9)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.B 

Meeting Date:   June 03, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes - May 6, 2019 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_050619 (DOCX) 

 

8.B

Packet Pg. 230



1 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 1 

May 6, 2019 2 

Regular Meeting – 7:00 PM 3 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 4 

Camden, North Carolina 5 

 6 

MINUTES 7 

The regular meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held on May 6, 2019 in 8 

the Historic Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina.  9 

 10 

CALL TO ORDER  11 

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Tom White at 7:00 PM.  Also Present: Vice 12 

Chairman Clayton Riggs, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Randy Krainiak and Ross Munro.   13 

 14 

Staff Present: County Manager Ken Bowman, Clerk to the Board Karen Davis, Finance Officer 15 

Sally Norfleet, Planning Director Dan Porter, Public Works Director David Credle, Head 16 

Librarian Kim Perry, Social Services Director Craig Patterson. 17 

 18 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 19 

Rev. William Sawyer gave the invocation and led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 20 

 21 

ITEM 1. PUBLIC COMMENTS        22 

 23 

None. 24 

 25 

ITEM 2. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE STATEMENT    26 

 27 

Clerk to the Board Karen Davis read the Conflict Of Interest Disclosure Statement. 28 

 29 

ITEM 3. CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA        30 

 31 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 32 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 33 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 34 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 35 

  36 

ITEM 4. PRESENTATIONS          37 

 38 

1. U.S. Census Bureau – Doug Bell  39 

 Mr. Bell was not present for the meeting. 40 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 231

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



2 

 

2. Camden County Public Schools – Dr. Joe Ferrell, along with Finance Officer Faye Perry 41 

and Operations Officer Larry Lawrence, presented the FY 2019-2020 Budget.   42 

 Capital Outlay Request - $586,000 43 

 ADM – End of 2nd month, 1857; End of 5th month, 1853.  FY 2019-2020 44 

allotment based on 1916.   45 

 To maintain current funding, $278,043 to be used from General Expense Fund, 46 

which will leave an Undesignated Fund Balance of $250,000. 47 

 48 

3. Sheriff’s Office Update – Sheriff Kevin Jones included the following in his presentation 49 

to the Board: 50 

 Command Structure Reorganization 51 

 Number of Events by Nature – 8047 Calls for Service (December 2018 – Present) 52 

 Training – 51 course enrollments, 890 hours of formal training (December 2018 – 53 

Present) 54 

 Updated Patrol Car Scheme 55 

 LESO Program Benefits 56 

 57 

4. Employee Recognition 58 

a. Charles Sawyer & Thomas Sawyer – Received Grade 1 Biological Operator 59 

Certification in March 2019. (Public Works Department) 60 

b. Sarah Lane – Retired in March 2019.  (Department of Social Services) 61 

c. Delores Stone – Retired in March 2019. (Dismal Swamp Visitor Center) 62 

d. Laura Jolley – New Senior Center Coordinator to begin on May 13, 2019. 63 

 64 

South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 65 

 66 

Chairman White recessed the meeting of the Board of Commissioners and called to order the 67 

South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors Meeting. 68 

 69 

Public Comments – None 70 

 71 

Consideration of the Agenda 72 

 73 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 232

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



3 

 

 74 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 75 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 76 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 77 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 78 

  79 

New Business 80 

 81 

A. Monthly Report 82 

 83 

Public Works Director David Credle presented the monthly report for March 2019 and the 12-84 

month report. 85 

 86 
 87 

 88 
 89 

 90 

 91 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 233

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



4 

 

 92 

Motion to approve the monthly report as presented. 93 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 94 
MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 95 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 96 

  97 

Motion to adjourn the meeting of the South Camden Water & Sewer Board of Directors. 98 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 99 
MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 100 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 101 

  102 

Chairman White adjourned the South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors and 103 

reconvened the Camden County Board of Commissioners. 104 

 105 

ITEM 5. PUBLIC HEARING          106 

 107 

A. Preliminary Plan Phase II North River Crossing Major Subdivision (UDO 2019-02-01) 108 

 109 

Motion to open the Public Hearing for Preliminary Plan Phase II North River Crossing 110 

Major Subdivision. 111 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 112 
MOVER: Ross Munro, Commissioner 113 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 114 

 115 

Planning Director Dan Porter introduced Dave Klebitz of Bissell Professional Group in Kitty 116 

Hawk, NC.  Mr. Klebitz gave a brief overview of the North River Crossing Phase II project: 117 

 Added total of 42 lots. 118 

 To be developed in three sub-phases – 2A, 2B and 2C.   119 

 10 lots in the first phase, 10 lots in the second phase and 22 lots in the third phase. 120 

 In accordance with the UDO all lots are greater than 40,000 square feet. 121 

 Sewer will be on site.  All 42 lots have been evaluated by the Health Department and 122 

determined to be provisionally suitable with modifications. 123 

 Water services will be served by an extension of the existing county water system 124 

installed in Phase I. 125 

 Stormwater management is an expansion of the existing stormwater system installed in 126 

Phase I.   127 

 Roads are designed at NCDOT standards. 128 

 129 

Mr. Porter presented the Staff Report as follows: 130 

 131 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 234

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



5 

 

Planning Board met on March 20, 2019 to consider the Preliminary Plan for Phase II North River 132 

Crossing 42 lot major residential subdivision and after discussion with staff, applicant, adjacent 133 

property owners on drainage concerns and considering Technical Review Committee input, 134 

Planning Board recommended approval of the Phase II Preliminary Plan for North River 135 

Crossing Major Subdivision with the recommendations as stated in Staff’s Findings on a 4-0 136 

vote.  Recommendation:  Amend agenda for consideration after public hearing.  137 

 138 

 139 
 140 

 141 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 235

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



6 

 

 142 
 143 

 144 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 236

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



7 

 

 145 
 146 

 147 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 237

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



8 

 

 148 
 149 

 150 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 238

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



9 

 

 151 
 152 

 153 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 239

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



10 

 

 154 
 155 

Chairman Tom White called for Public Comments either in support of or in opposition to the 156 

project.  There were no public comments. 157 

 158 

MOTION TO CLOSE THE PUBLIC HEARING. 159 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 160 
MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 161 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 162 

 163 

 164 

 165 

 166 

 167 

 168 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 240

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



11 

 

Motion to add Preliminary Plan Phase II North River Crossing Subdivision to New 169 

Business as Item 6.C. 170 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 171 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 172 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 173 

 174 

ITEM 6. NEW BUSINESS          175 

 176 

A. Monthly Tax Report – County Manager Ken Bowman presented the monthly tax report. 177 

 178 

 179 
 180 

 181 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 241

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



12 

 

 182 
 183 

30 Largest Unpaid - Real 184 

 185 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 242

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



13 

 

30 Oldest Unpaid - Real 186 

 187 

 188 
 189 

30 Largest Unpaid - Personal 190 

 191 
30 Oldest Unpaid – Personal 192 

 193 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 243

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



14 

 

Motion to approve the tax report as presented. 194 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 195 
MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 196 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 197 

 198 

B. Resolution 2019-05-01 – County Manager Ken Bowman presented Resolution 2019-05-199 

01. 200 

 201 

 202 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 244

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



15 

 

Motion to adopt Resolution 2019-05-01 as presented. 203 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 204 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 205 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 206 

 207 

C.  Preliminary Plan Phase II North River Crossing Major Subdivision 208 

 209 

Motion to approve Preliminary Plan Phase II North River Crossing Major Subdivision. 210 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 211 
MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 212 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 213 

 214 

ITEM 7. BOARD APPOINTMENTS         215 

 216 

1. Regional Advisory Council – Gwen Wescott (reappointment) 217 

2. Albemarle Regional Library Board – Nona Smith (appointment) 218 

3. Community Advisory Committee – Clarann Mansfield (reappointment) 219 

 220 

Motion to approve the board appointments as presented. 221 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 222 
MOVER: Ross Munro, Commissioner 223 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 224 

 225 

ITEM 8. CONSENT AGENDA         226 

 227 

The Consent Agenda was amended to add the Proclamation for Older Americans Month 2019 as 228 

item number 20.   229 

 230 

1. BOC Meeting Minutes – February 28, 2019 231 

2. BOC/BOE Joint Meeting Minutes – March 28, 2019 232 

3. BOC Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2019 233 

4. BOC Meeting Minutes – April 8, 2019 234 

 235 

 236 

 237 

 238 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 245

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



16 

 

5. Budget Amendments 239 

 240 

 241 
 242 

 243 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 246

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



17 

 

6. School Budget Amendments 244 

 245 

 246 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 247

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



18 

 

 247 
 248 

 249 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 248

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



19 

 

 250 
 251 

 252 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 249

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



20 

 

 253 
 254 

 255 

 256 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 250

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



21 

 

 257 

 258 

 259 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 251

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



22 

 

 260 

 261 

 262 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 252

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



23 

 

 263 

 264 

 265 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 253

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



24 

 

 266 
 267 

 268 

 269 
 270 

 271 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 254

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



25 

 

7. Tax Collection Report 272 

 273 
 274 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 255

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



26 

 

8. DMV Monthly Report 275 

 276 
 277 

 278 

 279 

 280 

 281 

 282 

 283 

 284 

 285 

 286 

 287 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 256

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



27 

 

9. Refunds Over $100 288 

 289 
 290 

10. Vehicle Refunds Over $100 291 

 292 
 293 

 294 

 295 

 296 

 297 

 298 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 257

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



28 

 

11. Revised FY 2019-2020 Annual Budget & CIP Calendar 299 

 300 
 301 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 258

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



29 

 

 302 
 303 

 304 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 259

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



30 

 

12. 2018-2019 Audit Contracts – On file in the Finance Office. 305 

 306 

13. Estimated Property Values 307 

 308 

 309 
 310 

 311 

 312 

 313 

 314 

 315 

 316 

 317 

 318 

 319 

 320 

 321 

 322 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 260

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



31 

 

14. DSVC Funding Extension 323 

 324 
 325 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 261

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



32 

 

15. HMGP Contract – Holland Consulting Planners, Inc. 326 

 327 
 328 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 262

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



33 

 

 329 
 330 

 331 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 263

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



34 

 

 332 
 333 

 334 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 264

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



35 

 

 335 
 336 

 337 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 265

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



36 

 

 338 
 339 

 340 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 266

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



37 

 

 341 
 342 

 343 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 267

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



38 

 

 344 
 345 

 346 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 268

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



39 

 

 347 
 348 

 349 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 269

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



40 

 

 350 
 351 

 352 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 270

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



41 

 

 353 
 354 

 355 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 271

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



42 

 

 356 
 357 

 358 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 272

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



43 

 

 359 
 360 

16. Set Public Hearing – FY 2019-2020 Budget 361 

17. Set Public Hearing – 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Plan 362 

18. Set Public Hearing – Ordinance 2019-03-01 Rezoning Application for Keeter Barn, LLC 363 

19. Set Public Hearing – Preliminary Plan Phase II Sleepy Hollow Estates 364 

20. Proclamation – Older Americans Month 2019 365 

 366 

Motion to amend the agenda by adding the Proclamation and approve the Consent Agenda 367 

as amended. 368 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 369 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 370 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 371 

 372 

ITEM 9. COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT       373 

 374 

County Manager Ken Bowman included the following in his report: 375 

 Advisory Board and Committee Openings 376 

 Next Meeting of the Board of Commissioners – June 3, 2019 377 

 Draft Budget Available to Public – May 10, 2019 378 

 County Assembly Day – May 8, 2019 379 

 Memorial Day Ceremony – May 24, 2019; 10:00 AM 380 

 County Offices Closed in Observance of Memorial Day – May 27, 2019 381 

 382 

 383 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 273

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



44 

 

ITEM 10. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS        384 

 385 

Chairman Tom White reported on the success of the Paddle for the Border 2019 event and 386 

thanked everyone involved for their efforts. 387 

 388 

ITEM 11. INFORMATION, REPORTS & MINUTES FROM OTHER AGENCIES  389 

 390 

The following items were provided to the commissioners for information purposes: 391 

 392 

A. FY 18-19 YTD Finance Report  393 

B. Register of Deeds Report 394 

 395 

ITEM 12. OTHER MATTERS          396 

 397 

None. 398 

 399 

ITEM 13. ADJOURN           400 

 401 

There being no further matters for discussion Chairman White called for a motion to adjourn. 402 

 403 

Motion to adjourn. 404 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 405 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 406 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 407 

 408 

Chairman White adjourned the May 6, 2019 meeting of the Board of Commissioners at 7:50 PM. 409 

 410 

 411 

              412 

       Tom White, Chairman 413 

       Camden County Board of Commissioners 414 

ATTEST: 415 

 416 

      417 

Karen M. Davis, NCCCC 418 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 419 

8.B.A

Packet Pg. 274

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

19
  (

23
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 6

, 2
01

9)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.C 

Meeting Date:   June 03, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Schools 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   School Budget Amendments 

 

Attachments: School Budget Amendments (PDF) 

 

8.C

Packet Pg. 275



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 276

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

24
01

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 277

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

24
01

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 278

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

24
01

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 279

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

24
01

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 280

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

24
01

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 281

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

24
01

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 282

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

24
01

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 283

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

24
01

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.D 

Meeting Date:   June 03, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   DMV Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: 20190503113500220.pdf (PDF) 

 

Summary:   DMV Monthly Report July, 19 Renewals Due 8/15/19 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

8.D

Packet Pg. 284



8.D.a

Packet Pg. 285

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

50
31

13
50

02
20

.p
d

f 
 (

23
97

 :
 D

M
V

 M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consideration of Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.E 

Meeting Date:   June 03, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: 20190502133714809.pdf (PDF) 

 

Summary:   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

8.E

Packet Pg. 286



8.E.a

Packet Pg. 287

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

50
21

33
71

48
09

.p
d

f 
 (

23
96

 :
 V

eh
ic

le
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.F 

Meeting Date:   June 03, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tax Collection Report 

 

Attachments: Tax Collection Report (PDF) 

 

8.F

Packet Pg. 288



8.F.a

Packet Pg. 289

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

24
09

 :
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.G 

Meeting Date:   June 03, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 

Attachments: Pickups, Releases & Refunds (PDF) 

 

8.G

Packet Pg. 290



8.G.a

Packet Pg. 291

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s 
&

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

 (
24

18
 :

 P
ic

ku
p

s,
 R

el
ea

se
s 

&
 R

ef
u

n
d

s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.H 

Meeting Date:   June 03, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Resolution 2019-06-03: Strengthening Critical Drainage & 

Water Quality Infrastructure 

 

Attachments: Resolution 2019-06-03 (DOC) 

 

Summary:   

From Mark Powell, Program & Project Management Consultant, Albemarle Resource 

Conservation & Development Council: 

 

At its May 7th board meeting the Albemarle RC&D Council adopted the attached resolution for 

strengthening critical drainage and water quality infrastructure in Northeast NC. The resolution 

seeks to bring attention to regional drainage and water quality issues, and to work in partnership 

with our state legislators to bring much needed funds to NE NC. The ARC&D Council will send 

a copy of its resolution to each state senator and representative in the council's 10-county area.  

 

The ARC&D Council is encouraging Boards of Commissioners, Soil and Water Conservation 

Districts, and other groups to adopt the resolution and send it to its state senators and 

representatives. The goal is to provide them with regional support for securing additional funds 

for NE NC.  

 

In the council's 10-county area, Tyrrell and Gates Boards of Commissioners have adopted and 

sent on the resolution.  

 

Please let me know if you have any questions about this regional effort to bring additional funds 

to NE NC for critical drainage and water quality infrastructure.  

 

8.H

Packet Pg. 292



 
Thank you in advance for your support.  

 

Mark  

8.H

Packet Pg. 293



 

 
 

Resolution 2019-06-03 

 

A Resolution of the Camden County Board of Commissioners for 

Strengthening Critical Drainage and Water Quality Infrastructure 

 

WHEREAS, the Camden County Board of Commissioners, which recognizes that more frequent and stronger 

storm events are causing longer periods of severe flooding and the subsequent degradation of water quality, 

AND that these problems are negatively impacting both urban and rural residents, businesses, and our regional 

economy, DESIRES to work with our legislators, local governments, businesses, Albemarle Resource 

Conservation and Development Council (ARC&D), Albemarle Commission (AC), Soil and Water 

Conservation Districts (SWCD), farmers, non-profit groups, universities, state and federal agencies and citizen 

scientists to strengthen critical drainage and water quality infrastructure in northeast North Carolina.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

 

The Camden County Board of Commissioners requests the State of North Carolina to increase financial 

assistance to the ten counties in northeast North Carolina around the Albemarle and Pamlico Sounds for the 

following activities, which will help strengthen critical drainage and water quality infrastructure in northeast 

NC.  

 

1) We recognize that creeks, rivers and canals are critical for draining stormwater off our flat landscape. 

However, many of these systems become clogged with woody debris during storm events, both minor 

and major. We request matching funds for local governments to annually clear debris from creeks, 

rivers and canals. This will help strengthen critical drainage infrastructure and lessen the damage that 

can occur during major storms such as Matthew and Florence.   

 

2) We recognize that swamp forests are a critical component of drainage infrastructure as they help 

mitigate floodwaters and improve water quality. We request funds to help provide financial incentives 

to owners of swamp forests to conserve a minimum 100-foot buffer along creeks and rivers, which is 

essential for protecting both drainage and water quality.  

 

3) We recognize that the return of algal blooms to our waters after an absence of 30 to 35 years is a 

threat to fisheries, recreation, property values, and human health, and thus to our regional economy. 

We request funds to help identify the causes of, and solutions to, the algal blooms, specifically to 

proactively monitor water quality in creeks and rivers—where NCDEQ does not have monitoring 

stations—in order to identify the specific sources of nutrients and sediment entering our waterways.  

This work would be performed in collaboration with local governments, ARC&D, AC, SWCD, 

universities, and citizen scientists.  

 

Adopted this the 3rd day of June 2019. 

 

 

             

      Tom White, Chairman 

      Camden County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Karen M. Davis, NCCCC 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

8.H.a

Packet Pg. 294

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
06

-0
3 

 (
24

08
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 2

01
9-

06
-0

3:
 S

tr
en

g
th

en
in

g
 C

ri
ti

ca
l D

ra
in

ag
e 

&
 W

at
er

 Q
u

al
it

y 
In

fr
as

tr
u

ct
u

re
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.A 

Meeting Date:   June 03, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Sally Norfleet, 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   FY 18-19 YTD Finance Report 

 

Attachments: Sales Tax Collections (PDF) 

FY 18-19 YTD Revenues (PDF) 

FY 18-19 YTD Expenditures (PDF) 

 

11.A

Packet Pg. 295



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 296

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

al
es

 T
ax

 C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s 
 (

24
10

 :
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 F

in
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
)



11.A.b

Packet Pg. 297

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 R

ev
en

u
es

  (
24

10
 :

 F
Y

 1
8-

19
 Y

T
D

 F
in

an
ce

 R
ep

o
rt

)



11.A.b

Packet Pg. 298

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 R

ev
en

u
es

  (
24

10
 :

 F
Y

 1
8-

19
 Y

T
D

 F
in

an
ce

 R
ep

o
rt

)



11.A.b

Packet Pg. 299

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 R

ev
en

u
es

  (
24

10
 :

 F
Y

 1
8-

19
 Y

T
D

 F
in

an
ce

 R
ep

o
rt

)



11.A.b

Packet Pg. 300

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 R

ev
en

u
es

  (
24

10
 :

 F
Y

 1
8-

19
 Y

T
D

 F
in

an
ce

 R
ep

o
rt

)



11.A.b

Packet Pg. 301

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 R

ev
en

u
es

  (
24

10
 :

 F
Y

 1
8-

19
 Y

T
D

 F
in

an
ce

 R
ep

o
rt

)



11.A.b

Packet Pg. 302

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 R

ev
en

u
es

  (
24

10
 :

 F
Y

 1
8-

19
 Y

T
D

 F
in

an
ce

 R
ep

o
rt

)



11.A.c

Packet Pg. 303

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
 (

24
10

 :
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 F

in
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
)



11.A.c

Packet Pg. 304

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
 (

24
10

 :
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 F

in
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
)



11.A.c

Packet Pg. 305

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
 (

24
10

 :
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 F

in
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
)



11.A.c

Packet Pg. 306

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
 (

24
10

 :
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 F

in
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
)



11.A.c

Packet Pg. 307

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
 (

24
10

 :
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 F

in
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
)



11.A.c

Packet Pg. 308

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
 (

24
10

 :
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 F

in
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.B 

Meeting Date:   June 03, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Tammie Krauss, Register of Deeds 

 Register of Deeds 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Register of Deeds Report 

 

Attachments: Weekly Report (XLS) 

Monthly Report (PDF) 

 

11.B

Packet Pg. 309



Camden County Register of Deeds: Tammie Krauss
April 2019 Daily Deposit

DATE NC CHILDRENSNC DOM. STATE COUNTY RETIREMENTAUTO FUND STATE ROD TOTAL
TRUST VIO. FUND REV. STAMPS REV. STAMPS TREASURYGENERAL

$17.72 $33.00 $2.33

04/01/19 -$          -$          563.50$        586.50$    6.18$        36.44$      62.00$      307.38$    1,562.00$        
04/02/19 5.00$        30.00$      1.68$        6.29$        12.40$      56.63$      112.00$           
04/03/19 -$          -$          263.62$        274.38$    3.56$        21.28$      31.00$      181.16$    775.00$           
04/04/19 -$          0.93$        4.87$        12.40$      43.80$      62.00$             

04/05/19 -$          -$          172.48$        179.52$    2.83$        14.83$      37.20$      133.54$    540.40$           

04/08/19 -$          -$          571.34$        594.66$    4.58$        27.35$      37.20$      235.87$    1,471.00$        
04/09/19 5.00$        30.00$      191.10$        198.90$    4.78$        25.76$      31.00$      221.46$    708.00$           
04/10/19 3.10$        18.49$      18.60$      166.41$    206.60$           
04/11/19 308.70$        321.30$    4.82$        26.01$      62.00$      228.97$    951.80$           
04/12/19 319.48$        332.52$    5.17$        32.34$      37.20$      270.29$    997.00$           
04/15/19 5.00$        30.00$      705.11$        733.89$    9.47$        50.44$      93.00$      443.29$    2,070.20$        
04/16/19 218.54$        227.46$    2.28$        13.01$      24.80$      111.91$    598.00$           
04/17/19 1.49$        7.89$        18.60$      71.02$      99.00$             
04/18/19 5.00$        30.00$      100.94$        105.06$    4.96$        27.04$      31.00$      233.00$    537.00$           
04/22/19 5.00$        30.00$      4.65$        24.57$      24.80$      220.98$    310.00$           
04/23/19 2.07$        12.87$      12.40$      110.66$    138.00$           
04/24/19 10.00$      60.00$      5.25$        26.05$      24.80$      223.90$    350.00$           
04/25/19 73.50$          76.50$      3.96$        24.46$      31.00$      204.58$    414.00$           
04/26/19 245.98$        256.02$    3.40$        20.29$      31.00$      172.31$    729.00$           
04/29/19 5.00$        30.00$      4.86$        26.24$      31.00$      225.70$    322.80$           
04/30/19 620.83$        646.17$    6.39$        38.46$      55.80$      325.35$    1,693.00$        

0.00
0.00

-$                 
TOTAL 40.00$      240.00$    4,355.12$     4,532.88$ 86.41$      484.98$    719.20$    4,188.21$ 14,646.80$      

11.B.a

Packet Pg. 310

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

ee
kl

y 
R

ep
o

rt
  (

24
00

 :
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

)



11.B.b

Packet Pg. 311

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

th
ly

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
24

00
 :

 R
eg

is
te

r 
o

f 
D

ee
d

s 
R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.C 

Meeting Date:   June 03, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Kim Perry, 

 Library 

 Prepared by: Kim Perry 

 
Item Title   Library Report 4/19 

 

Attachments: 19_04 (DOCX) 

 

11.C

Packet Pg. 312



Camden County Public Library 

April 2019 Statistics 

 
 

Visitor Count 1,613 

Materials Check Outs & Renewals 3,344 

Computer/ Wireless Use 689/481 

Questions Answered 389 

Juvenile Programs/Attendance 15/149 

Teen/Tween Programs/Attendance 3/13 

Adult Programs/Attendance 4/49 

Outreach Programs/Attendance 6/135 

Meeting Room Usage/Attendance 17/280 

Days/Hours Open 22/197 

# Items in Collection 18,029 

Library Card Holders 3,547 

 
 

 

Comparison by Year 

2017-2019 

    

           

3,223 3,262
3,344

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

Apr 2017 Apr 2018 Apr 2019

Circulation

2,042

1,471

1,613

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

1,800

2,000

2,200

Apr 2017 Apr 2018 Apr 2019

Attendance

11.C.a

Packet Pg. 313

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

9_
04

  (
24

03
 :

 L
ib

ra
ry

 R
ep

o
rt

)


	Agenda Packet
	Welcome & Call to Order
	Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance
	Pastor Joe Brock - Harmony Baptist Church

	1. Public Comments
	2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement
	3. Consideration of Agenda
	4. Presentations
	A. 2404 : Litter Sweep Participant Recognition - Brenda Bowman
	Printout: 2404 : Litter Sweep Participant Recognition - Brenda Bowman

	B. 2399 : NC Complete Count Commission - James Cofield, Jr.
	Printout: 2399 : NC Complete Count Commission - James Cofield, Jr.
	a. NCCCC 2020-NC-Fact-sheet
	b. JEC NCCCC Power Point Presentation Original Docs_
	c. CamdenCountyNCCCC

	C. 2420 : U.S. Census Bureau - Bernadette Richards
	Printout: 2420 : U.S. Census Bureau - Bernadette Richards
	a. US Census Presentation


	Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors Meeting
	Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	5. Public Hearings
	A. 2411 : Ordinance 2019-03-01 - Rezoning Application for Keeter Barn, LLC
	Printout: 2411 : Ordinance 2019-03-01 - Rezoning Application for Keeter Barn, LLC
	a. Agenda Summary Sheet Ordinance 2019-03-01 Keeter Barn
	b. Staff Report Findings
	c. Principal Use Table - HC vs VR
	d. 2019-03-01 - Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning Map - Keeter Barn

	B. 2412 : Preliminary Plan Phase II Sleepy Hollow Estates
	Printout: 2412 : Preliminary Plan Phase II Sleepy Hollow Estates
	a. Agenda Summary Sheet Sleepy Hollow Estates
	b. Staff Report Sleepy Hollow Estates
	c. revised Sleepy Hollow PHASE 2 Prelim 20190423
	d. Supporting documents Sleepy Hollow
	e. Planning Board Minutes 03172019
	f. Draft PB Minutes 04172019

	C. 2416 : Proposed FY 19-20 Budget
	Printout: 2416 : Proposed FY 19-20 Budget
	a. FY 19-20 Budget Message
	b. FY 19-20 Schedule of Changes Per BOC
	c. FY 19-20 Budget Ordinance
	d. FY 19-20 Schedule of Fees

	D. 2417 : Proposed FY 19-20 Capital Improvement Program
	Printout: 2417 : Proposed FY 19-20 Capital Improvement Program
	a. CIP 2019-2023


	6. New Business
	A. 2415 : April Monthly Report
	Printout: 2415 : April Monthly Report
	a. 20190528103618935.pdf
	b. April monthly report

	B. 2413 : South Mills VFD Fire Engine Request
	Printout: 2413 : South Mills VFD Fire Engine Request
	a. SMVFD Request

	C. 2406 : Resolution 2019-06-01: Salaries & Compensation for Various Boards and Commissions
	Printout: 2406 : Resolution 2019-06-01: Salaries & Compensation for Various Boards and Commissions
	a. Resolution 2019-06-01

	D. 2407 : Resolution 2019-06-02: Chesapeake Regional Healthcare Building Reuse Project
	Printout: 2407 : Resolution 2019-06-02: Chesapeake Regional Healthcare Building Reuse Project
	a. Resolution 2019-06-02


	7. Board Appointments
	A. 2402 : Library Board
	Printout: 2402 : Library Board

	B. 2405 : DSS Advisory Board
	Printout: 2405 : DSS Advisory Board
	a. Monique Chamblee_DSS Board


	8. Consent Agenda
	A. 2419 : BOC Meeting Minutes - May 2, 2019
	Printout: 2419 : BOC Meeting Minutes - May 2, 2019
	a. bocminutes_050219

	B. 2398 : BOC Meeting Minutes - May 6, 2019
	Printout: 2398 : BOC Meeting Minutes - May 6, 2019
	A. bocminutes_050619

	C. 2401 : School Budget Amendments
	Printout: 2401 : School Budget Amendments
	a. School Budget Amendments

	D. 2397 : DMV Monthly Report
	Printout: 2397 : DMV Monthly Report
	a. 20190503113500220.pdf

	E. 2396 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: 2396 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	a. 20190502133714809.pdf

	F. 2409 : Tax Collection Report
	Printout: 2409 : Tax Collection Report
	a. Tax Collection Report

	G. 2418 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	Printout: 2418 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	a. Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	H. 2408 : Resolution 2019-06-03: Strengthening Critical Drainage & Water Quality Infrastructure
	Printout: 2408 : Resolution 2019-06-03: Strengthening Critical Drainage & Water Quality Infrastructure
	a. Resolution 2019-06-03


	9. County Manager's Report
	10. Commissioners' Reports
	11. Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies
	A. 2410 : FY 18-19 YTD Finance Report
	Printout: 2410 : FY 18-19 YTD Finance Report
	a. Sales Tax Collections
	b. FY 18-19 YTD Revenues
	c. FY 18-19 YTD Expenditures

	B. 2400 : Register of Deeds Report
	Printout: 2400 : Register of Deeds Report
	a. Weekly Report
	b. Monthly Report

	C. 2403 : Library Report
	Printout: 2403 : Library Report
	a. 19_04


	12. Other Matters
	13. Adjourn
	Reconvene Board of Equalization & Review
	Adjourn Board of Equalization & Review

	Appendix
	4.A · 2404 : Litter Sweep Participant Recognition - Brenda Bowman
	4.B · 2399 : NC Complete Count Commission - James Cofield, Jr.
	4.B.a · NCCCC 2020-NC-Fact-sheet
	4.B.b · JEC NCCCC Power Point Presentation Original Docs_
	4.B.c · CamdenCountyNCCCC

	4.C · 2420 : U.S. Census Bureau - Bernadette Richards
	4.C.a · US Census Presentation

	5.A · 2411 : Ordinance 2019-03-01 - Rezoning Application for Keeter Barn, LLC
	5.A.a · Agenda Summary Sheet Ordinance 2019-03-01 Keeter Barn
	5.A.b · Staff Report Findings
	5.A.c · Principal Use Table - HC vs VR
	5.A.d · 2019-03-01 - Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning Map - Keeter Barn

	5.B · 2412 : Preliminary Plan Phase II Sleepy Hollow Estates
	5.B.a · Agenda Summary Sheet Sleepy Hollow Estates
	5.B.b · Staff Report Sleepy Hollow Estates
	5.B.c · revised Sleepy Hollow PHASE 2 Prelim 20190423
	5.B.d · Supporting documents Sleepy Hollow
	5.B.e · Planning Board Minutes 03172019
	5.B.f · Draft PB Minutes 04172019

	5.C · 2416 : Proposed FY 19-20 Budget
	5.C.a · FY 19-20 Budget Message
	5.C.b · FY 19-20 Schedule of Changes Per BOC
	5.C.c · FY 19-20 Budget Ordinance
	5.C.d · FY 19-20 Schedule of Fees

	5.D · 2417 : Proposed FY 19-20 Capital Improvement Program
	5.D.a · CIP 2019-2023

	6.A · 2415 : April Monthly Report
	6.A.a · 20190528103618935.pdf
	6.A.b · April monthly report

	6.B · 2413 : South Mills VFD Fire Engine Request
	6.B.a · SMVFD Request

	6.C · 2406 : Resolution 2019-06-01: Salaries & Compensation for Various Boards and Commissions
	6.C.a · Resolution 2019-06-01

	6.D · 2407 : Resolution 2019-06-02: Chesapeake Regional Healthcare Building Reuse Project
	6.D.a · Resolution 2019-06-02

	7.A · 2402 : Library Board
	7.B · 2405 : DSS Advisory Board
	7.B.a · Monique Chamblee_DSS Board

	8.A · 2419 : BOC Meeting Minutes - May 2, 2019
	8.A.a · bocminutes_050219

	8.B · 2398 : BOC Meeting Minutes - May 6, 2019
	8.B.A · bocminutes_050619

	8.C · 2401 : School Budget Amendments
	8.C.a · School Budget Amendments

	8.D · 2397 : DMV Monthly Report
	8.D.a · 20190503113500220.pdf

	8.E · 2396 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	8.E.a · 20190502133714809.pdf

	8.F · 2409 : Tax Collection Report
	8.F.a · Tax Collection Report

	8.G · 2418 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	8.G.a · Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	8.H · 2408 : Resolution 2019-06-03: Strengthening Critical Drainage & Water Quality Infrastructure
	8.H.a · Resolution 2019-06-03

	11.A · 2410 : FY 18-19 YTD Finance Report
	11.A.a · Sales Tax Collections
	11.A.b · FY 18-19 YTD Revenues
	11.A.c · FY 18-19 YTD Expenditures

	11.B · 2400 : Register of Deeds Report
	11.B.a · Weekly Report
	11.B.b · Monthly Report

	11.C · 2403 : Library Report
	11.C.a · 19_04



